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Highlights
1=

Turnover up by 30% to HK$387.9M
BER LT 300 E M 387.9 HEIT

Gross profit up by 30% to HK$85.3M
BAH LT 30% B 85.3 1 HIT

Outstanding order book up by 5.9% to HK$174.3M

RICHET BB AR 5.9% £ 1743 A E T

Significant growth in marble export and retail businesses

OO LT EEGRGEENR

Strong cash reserve for future growth opportunities

KA BB ff g AR H AR 58
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Chairman’s Statement

BNV et

2007 was a year of growth and development for the Group. Turnover — “FEE-LAERAREMEE KIFEA—4 « S
was up by 30% to HK$387.9 million with net profit before tax increasing | F} 30% Z £ ¥ 387,000,000 7T » BB RTALH
to HK$17.0 million. With the support of our experienced management I Z £ H#E % 17,000,000 7T © #EEEFRAEHLE K
team, we believe we have established a solid foundation for sustainable & &k > M{SALEBH DS FEEFEEE > HHE
growth. TR R AT A -

T ICH 45 S 2 R B

Listed below are some highlights of our Operating Divisions:

Plumbing Fixtures R R

1. We have further improved our 1. AEEE—SREE
market position in the dealer HR R i 2
market, and expanded our 7 s MR SET A
coverage of the refurbishment JEkion S )
sector in Hong Kong. i o

2. We have plans to open a luxury 2. AEHFHER L
showroom in Shanghai to serve BH R — i 2 4 B 571
the high-end market in Eastern 2 DAST S HE Y 5
China. This is an important step T o MEE A A
for our retail activities and will B T E Y
be a blueprint for future retail TR WA KA
expansion in the Mainland. AL HAZHER A

iR T ]
i o

3. We secured orders for high profile projects including The Vineyard, 3. ALEFECEREZEMSAMNER 5T HadE
The Palazzo, The Lake W and The Regency Park in Shanghai. % [E - The Palazzo * The Lake W J%_Fiff
AR E -

TRRLAE 2R AR A A
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Chairman’s Statement

BNV e

Tiles

The strong order intake in 2006 enabled us to deliver improved results in
2007. We are maintaining our leading position in the Hong Kong market
and secured a number of prestigious projects including the MTR stations
at Jordan Road, West Kowloon, East Tsim Sha Tsui, as well as One Island

East and Windsor House.

Marble Export

Our new marble processing plant in DongGuan is now in full operation.
The additional production capacity enabled us to increase our turnover
by more than 100% in 2007. We are continuing to expand our customer

base by targeting international customers who require the highest quality

products and designs.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Engineering

We focused on our distribution and services of imported filters, air handling
units, calorifiers, strainers and Internal Air Quality equipment. We secured
a number of landmark projects in 2007 including Science Park (Phase 2),

One Island East, The Lisboa Casino and the Sheung Shui Slaughterhouse.

Building Materials Export

We made good progress in 2007 and opened new accounts across Europe
and the United States. We expanded our sourcing capabilities to cover a
wider range of products and this has opened up new opportunities with

new and existing customers.

We believe we have established a firm foundation for the traditional
trading business and structured ourselves effectively for growing
opportunities in marble processing and building materials export. While
recent economic changes in the United States and the Mainland have
created additional challenges to our business, we remain confident of

maintaining our growth momentum in 2008.

Michael John Green
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2008

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R L BT

Review of Operations

The Group continued to be engaged principally in its core business of
trading of building materials and engineering equipment. The Group
also established a processing factory in the PRC to process and export

marble products.

During the year, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$387.9 million
with a gross profit of HK$85.3 million (2006: HK$297.6 million and HK$65.7
million respectively). The improvement was mainly attributable to the
increase in turnover of tiles trading, marble export and retail operations.
Gross profit margin remained at around 22% despite the pressure of
rising materials costs. Operating expenses increased to HK$75.7 million
(2006: HK$65.4 million) mainly because of staff compensation and
depreciation charges of the new marble factory. Taking into account the
net gain on disposal after share of loss of associate for the year 2007 of
HK$1.6 million (2006: share of loss of associate of HK$1.8 million) and
gain on disposal of an investment property of HK$0.4 million, the Group’s
profit attributable to shareholders for the year improved to HK$16.8 million
(2006: HK$2.1 million).

The Group continued to improve its market coverage with new products
and a wider customer base. Growth was also achieved in our
manufacturing and export operations, resulting in outstanding orders on
hand at the year end amounting to HK$174.3 million, representing an
increase of 5.9% over the end of last year (At December 2006: HK$164.6

million).

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

K0 B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Segmental Information

From 2007 onwards, the Group has re-organised its operations around
three business segments. The segmental analysis has therefore been
restated and the original two segments (being the trading in and the
supply of building products and engineering equipment) have been
replaced by () trading (i) manufacturing and export and (iii) retail and
renovation operations. Management believes that this analysis better
reflects the way in which the business is now managed and its future

strategic direction.

Trading operations represent the traditional business of distributing
engineering equipment and building products. Manufacturing and export
operations mainly include the manufacturing and exporting of natural
stone products. Retail and renovation operations consist of the Group’s
two retail outlets in Hong Kong and the wholesale business to local

dealers.

Revenue from trading operations increased by HK$13.1 million to
HK$241.6 million with the gross profit contribution decreasing by HK$2.2
million to HK$39.8 million (2006: HK$228.5 million and HK$42.0 million
respectively). During the year, new residential property projects in Hong
Kong reduced substantially which adversely affected our sales of plumbing
fixtures to new projects. Gross margin was also under pressure because

of the rising import prices from overseas suppliers.

R L BT

vigi 3

H R LA » AR EAA 5 — 2
B o UL > S E/EES > FA 2 R
I3TR (RS G R TR 2 B 5 ) ©
OB S ~ GDEE M O K GiD T E KRB
B o B BEARME > WLIE AT RE T4 RO S e B
112 SR PR SR ABUR Dy 1) -

B AR B LR R E S 2 R
B o A K O3B F RN LS 0 RKRA
PR i o 2285 I Al 255 I 0 B8 A AR T 7 5 s
SR EE T R A KRR EH T A T 2 AR
;T% o

A& & by 2 AN ¥ 13,100,000 TG E
UM 241,600,000 JG - BFIE RO &5 5
2,200,000 JCE A 39,800,000 6 (ZFEN
A K B 228,500,000 JC K A HE W
42,000,00070) ° FIN - FEEWENBIHEE X
s Y DAECYEEAR BB E H L SR
PR > ) BRIERIRAZ B i /ML RE e o = ot
TR 2 o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i BT

Segmental Information (cont’d)

Revenue from manufacturing and export increased from HK$32.9 million
in 2006 to HK$78.3 million in 2007. This was mainly due to the completion
of the marble processing factory in Dongguan at the end of last year.
With the increase in capacity, the Group was able to benefit from the

increasing demand from overseas clients.

The recent recovery of the secondary property market in Hong Kong
also provided the Group with growth opportunities in the renovation
market. Strong sales were recorded through the Group’s retail outlets
and local dealers. Turnover increased by 88.3% from HK$36.1 million in
2006 to HK$68.0 million in 2007. As a result, overall gross profit increased
from HK$12.6 million in 2006 to HK$22.3 million in 2007.

Disposal of associates

On 23 July 2007, Arnhold & Company, Limited (“ACL”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Deed with Bostik Australia Pty
Ltd (“Bostik”) and Bostik Holding Hong Kong Limited (“Joint Venture” or
“Bostik HK”) in relation to the termination of the Joint Venture established
by ACL and Bostik. It was agreed that ACL would transfer 4,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each in the Joint Venture to Bostik, and Bostik would in
return pay ACL a sum of HK$11.4 million, which includes the consideration
for the transfer of shares in the Joint Venture and the amount owed by
the Joint Venture to ACL. The disposal was completed on 1 August 2007,
whereupon Bostik HK became wholly owned by Bostik and ceased to
be an associate of the Group. Details of the disposal were disclosed in a

circular of the Company dated 14 August 2007.

On 11 January 2008, the Group completed a share disposal transaction in
the capital of Kingspan China Limited (“KCL”), an associate company in
which the Group had a 20% equity interest, whereby the Group transferred
its entire interest represented by 2,000 ordinary shares in KCL to Kingspan
Holdings (Insulation) Limited (formerly as Kootherm Holdings Limited).
Upon completion of the disposal, KCL is no longer an associate of the

Group.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

AHER (40
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78,300,000 JC > %8 EEH A BEE KFFIKIE KT
FEEE AN LR Mg @ A Sy > AL [ n]
Bl 5968 A1 % B R BN 9 75 SR 2 2 o

T T ST I A AR T IR AR S [ 1 3618
R R o AREETE M LAHALH
PSS IR S B3 - R BN TEL
¥ 36,100,000 JGHE R 88.3% & —EF - LAELMNE
68,000,000 JG © L > L EH H ZTENE
U 12,600,000 L FE ZBE LA
22,300,000 JC °

BB A )

REELFELA =0 ZRERAR (R
AFAEEWE AT ([ZH))
Pty Lid. ([ Bostik ]) K Bostik Holding Hong Kong
Limited ([58727 ] 3% [Bostik HK ) #i#%1k
FIEL Bostik B 2 A% 08 RIFT 5L 3245 o *73"[7’1}’1
E o K ) Bostik BRRH A8 A BRI IR
At > RI4,000/8 5 BB I {E 5 M 1 e 2 2 i
1M1 Bostik HIJ 6] 2 1 32 A5 #E 11,400,000 7C »
TEER SN F e 2 A8 I 58 A FIEAT T
LR EIH - WEFHOAZEEFLFENT—H
e > HA% > Bostik HK H Bostik 2 & #Ef7 > H.
AEAAEIMZEEAT - HEFHEZFHOCHK
K /NS St 7 e == o VAN B iy Lt B 1
A o

HiBostik Australia

RZEENE—H+—H > AR SRS ER
FEARAR (TERAE D (AREERA 2000
RER SR B A BBy > FEIG > A B
S P B ) AR A R T v I e £
2,000 &) F Kingspan Holdings (Insulation)
Limited (/% Kootherm Holdings Limited) °
RS i R e e N e SAEE) /N
e

Annual Report 2007



Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Exposure and Financial Hedging
The Group adopts hedging policies for managing its risk exposure to
foreign currency fluctuations and forward exchange contracts have been
arranged with the Group’s principal bankers to mitigate exchange risks.
Further information of the forward exchange contracts is disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained a healthy balance sheet with no bank borrowing
and zero gearing as at year end (At 31 December 2006: Nil). The Group
remained conservative in working capital management, and generated a
positive cash flow of HK$12.0 million from operating activities with cash
balances of HK$74.5 million as at year end (At 31 December 2006: HK$52.7
million). Most of the Group’s cash balances are placed in time deposits
with reputable financial institutions. We will continue to manage our
cash flow cautiously and expect to meet our future financial requirements

by internal resources and bank credit facilities.

Contingent Liabilities

Certain subsidiaries have given undertakings to the banks that they will
perform certain contractual non-financial obligations to third parties. In
return, the banks have provided performance bonds and letters of
guarantee to third parties on behalf of these subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2007, the amount of guarantees outstanding was HK$3.0 million

(At 31 December 2006: HK$3.1 million).
Banking facilities with assets pledged

A property with net book value of HK$50.1 million at year end held by a
subsidiary of the Group is pledged to a bank to obtain banking facilities.

SERFL

BB 4 BT

B st B S 0 S e

%S R A B O L R E) - S BUL
PR ACHAT AT A ISR £ 4 LA BB S, o
RIS MIE £ 2 Fo 0k O TE RS SR A i 2
fiffe g -

L Tl B 4 S B O

AR EAE R P A BOIRDL AR IR I 4
AR - HEARELRAE (ZEFN
FHZA=ZT—R &) o REEIGBEERE
MR B S > WHAESE R RARBE &L
#12,000,000 JC - TAFEH 2 Bla 55 8R4 s ¥
74,500,000 & (ZFEEANFT_H=1T—H : 4
#HE 52,700,000 J0) ° AL EIIF Bl & A 8R
PUSE BIAE B8 A2 5 B R AT 2 BB A - FRA1
5 B A I R B B 4 A B > N DA T
KARTHE R - AT H BRI T2 -

Y ER

T A mI R TR & S = B TS T
FEMBHER 2 SR EAT o ZESITEMILICESR
BRI B 2 ) 1) B = SR A PR R R o it
ZEBLET A= —H > RERZIEREHE
By #THE%3,000,0000T (ZFEEANEF H =4
H : %% 3,100,000 JT) o

VL% v A S Z ST 45 1Y

— TE P AR 4 [ S BTS2 AR M R AR A R 2 B
T (5 A0 9 50,100,000 TTZ #9126 > B ARG
SRATE B A TR 1T -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i BT

Employees

At the end of 2007, the Group had approximately 452 employees in the
Mainland and approximately 132 employees in Hong Kong and Macau.
The Group continues to provide remuneration packages and training
programmes to employees with reference to prevailing market practices.
Under the existing share option scheme of the Group, subject to
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the directors were authorised to grant share options to eligible
persons as incentives. Details of share options granted are disclosed in

the Report of the Directors annexed to this annual report.

Outlook

The Group has achieved encouraging growth in 2007 and will continue
to focus on improving its market position in Hong Kong, Macau and the
Mainland. The credit crunch in the USA and the inflation pressures in
Hong Kong and the Mainland will make the coming year an extremely
challenging one, but with the support of our well experienced
management team, we have confidence in our growth strategy and remain

optimistic about the future.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

B &
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Corporate Information

23 FE R

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management YT L5 NN S
- MICHAEL JOHN GREEN, aged 68, is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Green obtained a bachelor’s
i "‘-h degree in electrical engineering from McGill University in Canada in 1962 and is a member of
various engineering institutions and associations. He is responsible for the strategic planning and
'-;l B ] F-- 1 overall management of the Group. Mr. Green joined the Group in 1962.
-
e

Ko Bbk - BLAE 68 B MAEBMER o BMIEER I THERERIMER McGill
University » BU5 S TR LA > BU 200 TREATR G K& i) & 8 - A smAR B 2 kg
R SRR B o BMIBE I — JUN AR AR -

DANIEL GEORGE GREEN, aged 34, an executive director and the Managing Director of the
Group. After gaining his degree in Manufacturing Systems Engineering at the University of
Pennsylvania, Mr. Green worked in New York as a strategy consultant for Andersen Consulting
(now Accenture), and as an equity analyst for Sofaer Capital’s Global Hedge Fund. Mr. Green

joined the Group in 2002 and is the son of the Chairman.

FHIE o Bbk > BUAF348 > AEEZ HATE R E TR o BMOEERESY LSRR IS
WERFUREME - AMAZEBMAR (HERRE) EHOREER - %R Sofaer
Capital's Global Hedge Fund LBk F5/0 T B o BMEA IR —FF A MAALE - 475
FHZT -

TEFE AR AW R A R A A (11
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Corporate Information

23 FVE R

LAI KA TAK, PATRICK, aged 43, is the Finance Director of the Group. Mr. Lai graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic and the University of Warwick with a professional diploma in
management accountancy and a master’s degree in business administration. He is an associate
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Before joining the Group, he was with the Astron Group Ltd., a
subsidiary of Flextronics Group, for 3 years as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Lai joined the Group

in November 1998.

R > BUF435 WAL E S o B E BN F I TE R K University of Warwick
3 PIVRERE T P B SR N T B B o B SR A P R & S A R
NEZEE - BIEAAEMAARER A > EBERETEIDARAR (EASHERMEAR)
Z FARIAB AR 3 4F o SO — UL+ — T IMAA SR

CHRISTOPHER JOHN DAVID CLARKE, aged 58, is a non-executive director of the Company
since September 2004 and was an independent non-executive director from 2002 until 2004. He
also serves on the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Clarke is
the Managing Partner of DLA Piper Hong Kong, the Hong Kong office of a leading international
law firm. He has over 34 years of experience as a solicitor in England and Hong Kong with

extensive experience in commercial litigation and corporate and commercial law and regulation.

g > BUAESSHE > A R RIERIEEALA R AT H S > (e TT AFE T RTPUE L
RIS A A FIBSE IR U TS © BURRA R RIFR R B G MHMZ B &R E o fRREE5E A 1 B
SR PR T A s R A A T A M R 2 P o DR SR R s AL SR G 3445 AP 3
RHA ~ O T S T Rk ) T A e A

SIMON MURRAY, CBE, aged 68, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company
since September 2004 and was a non-executive director of the Company from 2002 until 2004.
He is the Chairman of General Enterprise Management Services (International) Limited (GEMS
Ltd), a private equity fund management company owned by Simon Murray and Associates Limited.
He is also a director of a number of public listed companies including Cheung Kong (Holdings)

Limited and Orient Overseas (International) Limited.

B > CBE > BlF6sHK - B “ERMEREEAL B AT ER > —FR 5 ERN
FRRHALNFIFRATE S - BAFNBEEESE A RREREERARAF (%A JISimon
Murray and Associates Limited ir#EH) HIERE > IR ZHES EHTARIZ#ESH > A RILEZE
(BEM) AR R RA TSN (B AIRAF -
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Corporate Information
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AUGUSTUS RALPH MARSHALL, aged 56, is an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a Member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
has some 30 years’ experience in financial and general management. He was appointed to the
board of Arnhold Holdings Limited as an Executive Director in May 2000 and since February 2002,
he has been serving as a Non- Executive Director. He also serves on the Boards of several companies
listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad viz. ASTRO ALL ASIA NETWORKS plc (“Astro”) as
Executive Deputy Chairman; Tanjong Public Limited Company (“Tanjong”) also listed on the London
Stock Exchange plc as Executive Director; MEASAT Global Berhad and KLCC Property Holdings
Berhad as Non-Executive Director; and Overseas Union Enterprise Ltd (“OUE”) which is listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. He is also an Executive Director of Usaha

Tegas Sdn. Bhd. which has significant interests in Astro, Tanjong and OUE among others.

AUGUSTUS RALPH MARSHALL * BL4F 56 5% » J99EA% B S gl AT i i & w2 € & B RS 2k
PHEERE e wt i A € @ B o MRS E B B 3024F « G R ETE N BEIE/A
EEZIGESR - Wl FTFE T RAFITES o BURZ MR Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad 17 2 A F4TRE > 245 ASTRO ALL ASIA NETWORKS ple ([Astrol) ZATBUEI £
Tanjong Public Limited Company ([Tanjongl) (ISR RMEEEZRACH T ETHAR) ZWATEDS
MEASAT Global Berhad A} KLCC Property Holdings Berhad 2 JEUfTH# 35 » DL B & 2%
25 BT E T Overseas Union Enterprise Ltd (“OUE”) o {ARAyjit Astro ~ Tanjong & OUE {
HAERMELE MY Usaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd. Z AT F o

LIM GHEE KEONG, aged 40, was appointed as an alternate director of Mr Augustus Ralph
Marshall in September 2006. Mr. Lim graduated with a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Distinction), majoring in Finance from the University of Hawaii at Manoa. He is the Group
Treasurer of Malaysia based Usaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd., which has significant investments in
telecommunications, media, power, energy, marine logistics, gaming, real estate and other sectors.
Prior to joining Usaha Tegas, he held various credit and treasury positions in General Electric
Capital Corporation in the USA and in a local bank in Malaysia. He has more than 18 years’
experience in treasury and credit management. His other directorships include Paxys Inc., a
business process outsourcing company (listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Overseas
Union Enterprise Ltd., which is involved in hotel operation and investment holding (listed on the

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).

S - BIFE 405 > i ZFBNFIUH HEZAT Sy Augustus Ralph Marshall 5642 2 B REH o Ak
SetE B Manoa B B R R - SIS ZAEIMH 2 TR A LA (—8R) o BBl MRtk
PYEiUsaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd. WA A] & » s% AR Bl - B - BRI - ALY - % -
5 Hh 5 HoA #IE H9A BERKARE © A Usaha Tegas 4E B DART » 1% % it 58 General Electric
Capital Corporation}}%%ﬁﬁﬁ‘]ll&i&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@féﬁ&Hfﬁﬁﬂ%&ﬁ% o DR B B B B
R 18 AEARER o ROTA: 1Y HA B S IROB (4 SRR B RB IR 2 b T b T RO P SE A AP A B Paxys
Inc. > PAR T8 Ik 8 0 H B 48 BN s B I3 78 9528 5 it | BY Overseas Union Enterprise
Ltd. °

“FRFLA R
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Corporate Information

23 FVE R

V-NEE YEH B A, /.D. American Attorney-at-law, aged 49, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 1999. He also serves on the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeh was graduated from the School of Law at Columbia University
and was admitted a member of the California Bar Association in 1984. He worked with the
Lazard Houses (New York, Hong Kong and London) in corporate finance, capital markets and
risk arbitrage from 1984 onwards, until his resignation from Lazard Brothers Capital Markets as a
partner in 1990. He is also a co-founder of Value Partners Limited, and chairman of Argyle Street
Management Limited and Cheetah Investment Management Limited. He was the chairman of
Hsin Chong Construction Group Limited until December 2007, and a council member of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until its merger into the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited. He was a member of the Listing Committee of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission from 1999 through 2003. Mr. Yeh also sits on the Takeovers & Mergers Panel, the
Takeovers Appeal Committee and SFC Dual Filing Advisory Group of Securities and Futures
Commission. Mr. Yeh is also a director of Next Media Limited and Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited, listed companies in Hong Kong; and a director of Uni-Asia Finance Corporation, a listed

company in Singapore.

REMR BA, 7D RN - BAE 495 - B —JULIVEIIEAL AL IFATE S o SR AL
Rl Z B N B e R o BESe A S 3 A HL SR B IR TR AR o R — JL /U A R
AT ETE - 58— /AL ERERR Lazard Houses (A4 ~ F s KmE) SEAFME -
EAT S LA R E B TS » BH 2R— JULVE4ERHE Lazard Brothers Capital Markets £ A
—k Ik o B4y Value Partners Limited I A2 — » i & Argyle Street Management Limited /&
Cheetah Investment Management Limited Z /8 « HE —FE-LETH > ERAEH/FEEE
LA RAFZ LR o BEREIEFBHEG LS TARARZEE - HEZARE &
Lo BEERARARIL o = UIVEEZEEZ =4 ATHEESEEERZEGNE - [
RPEESEAE IR A s M E IR T TWRA A ZE S - W EHREE T B EaE S
R B /DAL o 3 SR R AN B i v A R S AT R ) D 4 R o A T A B ] LA
KBTI 17748 W A S A PR 7 2 FE R o

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2007



Corporate Information

23 FE R

THADDEUS THOMAS BECZAK, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2004. He also serves on the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr Beczak was the Chairman of Nomura Asia Holding N.V. and the Senior Advisor
to Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited. Currently, he is the Chairman of the Cowen
Latitude Advisors Limited. He is also the non-executive Chairman of ACR Capital Holdings Pte.
Ltd. and an independent non-executive director of a number of listed companies, including
Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited, Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp
Limited and Namtai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited.

From November 1997 until December 2002, Mr. Beczak was Chairman of the Listing Committee
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and a member of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Board of
Directors from 1998 until 2001. Currently, he is a member of the Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Advisory Committee
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC).

From September 1997 until December 2003, Mr. Beczak was a Director of Kerry Holdings Limited.
During this time he also held various Board and operating positions within the group, including
Deputy Chairman of SCMP Holdings Limited and Publisher of South China Morning Post Publishers
Limited, Deputy Chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited, Deputy Chairman of Kuok Philippines
Properties, a Director of China World Trade Center Limited and a Director of Kerry Properties
Limited.

Prior to joining the Kerry Group, Mr. Beczak was a Managing Director of J.P. Morgan Inc., and
President of J.P. Morgan Securities Asia from 1990 until 1997. While at J.P. Morgan, Hong Kong,
he was a Director of the Bank of the Philippine Islands and a Committee Member of the Hong

Kong Association of Banks. Mr. Beczak has over 20 years of experience in Asia.

Mr. Beczak is a graduate of Georgetown University (B.S.ES.), and Columbia University (M.B.A).

He is a member of the Board of Advisors of the School of Foreign Service at Georgetown.
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FRZS B 09 e SRUBR o 4% 35 %% Cowen Latitude Advisors LimitedZ R » BLEACR Capital Holdings
Pte. Ltd. ZIEBATFR - FIREIR A2 M BT A RIRE S IERATE S - G5 BURA R R
A~ by Sl B R I A BR S W) & Namtai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited °
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Registered Office
Clarendon House
Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Company Secretary
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick

Principal Bankers
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
CALYON

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
6/F Victoria Centre

15 Watson Road

North Point, Hong Kong

Shanghai Office

Unit 1109, 11/F, Tower 1

Kerry Everbright City

218 Tian Mu West Road
Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

Macau Office
Alameda Dr. Carlos d’ Assumpcao
Nos. 411-417, Edificio Dynasty Plaza

19 andar R, em Macau

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Unit 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Website
http://www.arnhold.com.hk
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Arnhold Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) has pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2007.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are shown in note 21 to

the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and

geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers during the financial year are as

follows:

Report of the Directors
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BREERARAF ((ARF]) EEe#HLER
TEBLAFAERA KRN T LR AR (A1
(A% ]) B2 -FTLFE+_A=+—HIL4F
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Percentage of
the Group’s total

A7 S I B ET 43 B
Sales Purchases
it ik £
The largest customer BREF 7.8%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRIEEFGF 25.7%
The largest supplier B AR 20.2%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate R B R R A = 49.9%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in

these major customers or suppliers.
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o

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are set

out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 42.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any interim dividend for

the six months ended 30 June 2007.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK4.4 cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$9,913,000, for the year
ended 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil) subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company. If
approved, the final dividend will be distributed on or about 19 May
2008.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the

year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$37,500
(2006: HK$22,500).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are set

out on page 132.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in

note 31 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December 2007, under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$86,500,000 (2006:
HKS$77,026,000).
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Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on page 131.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group and the Company as

at 31 December 2007 are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2007. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Pre-emptive Rights
No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda in relation to

issue of new shares by the Company.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report are:

Executive directors:
Michael John Green (also appointed as alternate director to Simon Murray)
Daniel George Green

Lai Ka Tak, Patrick

Non-executive directors:

Augustus Ralph Marshall

Lim Ghee Keong (alternate director to Augustus Ralph Marshall)
Christopher John David Clarke

Independent non-executive directors:
V-Nee Yeh
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak

Simon Murray
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o

Directors (cont’d)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, Messrs Lai
Ka Tak, Patrick, Christopher John David Clarke and Thaddeus Thomas
Beczak retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All remaining directors

shall continue in office.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of Messrs V-Nee Yeh, Simon Murray and Thaddeus Thomas Beczak

and considered them as independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2007, which do not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 37 to the financial

statements.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Share Option Scheme

A Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved and adopted by

the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company on 11 July

2002. The following information relating to the Scheme are made pursuant

to the requirements as contained in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules

(reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 24 June 2002

(the “Circular”). Terms defined in the Circular have the same meanings

when used in the following summary unless the context requires

otherwise):
i)  Purpose of the Scheme

i)

i)

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contribution that Eligible Persons have made or may make to the

Company and to attract and retain and motivate talented staff.

Participants of the Scheme

The participants of the Scheme shall be such Eligible Persons as the

Board in its absolute discretion determines.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options to subscribe for Shares granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue of the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme.
As at 20 March 2008, being the date of the annual report, 8,949,600
Shares were available for issue under the Scheme representing 3.97%

of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Maximum entitlement to any one participant

Under the Scheme, the maximum entitlement to Options of each
Eligible Person shall be such that the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of Options granted and to be granted
to him/her in any 12 months period up to each Commencement
Date must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company

at the relevant Commencement Date.

Period and payment on acceptance of Options

Under the Scheme, an Offer may be accepted by an Eligible Person
in whole or in part in respect of all Shares for which it is offered to
such Eligible Person when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the Offer duly signed by the Eligible Person together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company within

forty days from the Offer Date.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The Subscription Price in respect of any Option shall be not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant
Commencement Date in respect of such Option, which must be a
Business Day; (i) an amount equivalent to the mean closing price
of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the relevant
Commencement Date in respect of such Option, which must be a

Business Day, and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date unless otherwise terminated

under the terms of the Scheme.
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Details of Options granted to directors and employees under the Scheme

as at 31 December 2007 are as follows:
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Ji B3 (4)

REEFLEL A= REZE A

N EER N AR BRI 2 BRI T

Outstanding Outstanding
Options as at Options as at
1 January Exercised/ 31 December
2007 lapsed/ 2007
REFRLE cancelled RoZRLE Subscription
Date of —~H—H Granted  duringtheyear ~ +-H=+—H price
Options granted WARIHEZ  during the year WAL/ WA per Share
2 WA 11 ) B TRAE R fie /i B A e
HKS$
Directors HH
Daniel George Green FHe e B4k 18 September 2003 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.500
“EEZEAATAR
19 November 2004 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.602
“REWE A
21 November 2005 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 0.700
e
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick HEf 18 September 2003 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 0500
“EE=EAATAR
19 November 2004 1,700,000 - - 1,700,000 0.602
“REWE A A
21 November 2005 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 0.700
SRFRFT—A 0
Employees = 18 September 2003 1,000,000 - (800,000) 200,000 0.500
“EE=EAATAR
21 November 2005 500,000 - - 500,000 0.700
SRFRFT—A 0
11,900,000 - (800,000) 11,100,000
TEFLLE FMH R R AR AR
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)
At the dates before the Options were granted, 17 September 2003, 18
November 2004 and 20 November 2005, the market value per share was

HK$0.50, HK$0.60 and HK$0.70 respectively.

The Options granted on 18 September 2003 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 September 2005 and 30
August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1 September

2006 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 19 November 2004 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November 2006 and 30
August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1 November

2007 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 21 November 2005 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November 2007 and 30
August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1 November

2008 and 30 August 2010.

Apart from the Scheme mentioned above, at no time during the year was
the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
None of the directors (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to subscribe

for shares of the Company.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

W BT (%)

e A —H - BT =4 6
H > ZZFZZNE+—A+AH K -FZRF+—
A H > B e (55 7 5 #s%0.50 7T ~ s
< 0.60 JC KWK 0.70 IC -

A ZFEZAEIUA N BB 2 B RE RT3 WA
Tl > RIEHEZ s0% i —FEHF LA —HE
ZEFFNA = H B £ Z50%
A EEANFNHA—HEF—FFNHA =T
H Ik R AF i o

i FZ A — A LA 2 2 SRR T 5 7
WIAT0E - EIBCHE 2 S000m] i —FFNEA—
% %%\ =+ H IR 8 F 2
50% Al ZHFFLEH—H—HE2ZF—F4E N
A =1 HIEWIMATE -

M EERAES—H A — B 2 R 5
WA > BERAAE 2 5000 m] lH ZFEL4ET—H
—H&E E-FENA =B IEEE 2T
Z50% A ZHFFNE+—H—HR2_F—F4F
AHZ+ B R -

BRUL_EREad 2 7t BIAh o AR AR w) R A
FEHERT SATAT 22 B - BURAC LS 7] 2 S it i
AR ) A 3 N PR 2 5 R T A 15 )
i AES (RAEE Z B & /R T
20) A T AT AT T AT AR A A R R 2
HER) o

Annual Report 2007



Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Based on the binomial option pricing model, the fair value of the Options
granted on 18 September 2003, 19 November 2004 and 21 November
2005 are HK$0.248, HK$0.141 and HK$0.180 respectively. However, since
the valuation relies on subjective assumptions such as the estimated
volatility of the Share price, the binomial option pricing model does not

necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the Options.

The weighted average assumptions used are as follows:
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BT (%)

P IR IR A - IR BB AN
A+AH > ZFZFNE+—A IR ZFE
FAFEA—H A — B B IR > AT E 5 F
LW 0.248 70 ~ W5 0.141 JTC X HEHE 0.180 UC ©
E A R B RO e (B AU T A L b EBURE: 6
ANTEA A > DR ot — T R B e (A =R
WHRAE T SE 1Y BEIRRE A TEE -

THESF- 26 A s

Options granted on

b B2 1y 990
21 November 19 November 18 September
2005 2004 2003
BT RN TRREAE
+—A=+—H +—HA+n JLUIHAH
Risk free interest rate (in %) 4t L g K1) 2R (%) 4.4 2.8 3.8
Expected life (in years) EFHER (4F) 5.0 6.0 6.9
Volatility (in %) NE(%) 51.2 49.2 77.5
Expected dividend per share (cents) T RE (i) 4.4 4.4 4.4
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of each director
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

W R AT BBy ~ BB
B Be i 2 Z M fk e IR AT

RZFEFLHET A =1T—H > MBEALEIER
A L B (TR S el ) 56 35216
AP & 2 BRI > SR AL B 3 d A T8
5538 5 WO R HEST R T RN 8 AN W) BOBiss fir » & 38
S A N T AR I (G 28 R S
IS XV &B) Z Betsy ~ AHBH Ry B A I 2 ME 4
REWT

FEIRIENE 0.10 JC. 2 AR

Number of shares held

P BB H
Equity Percentage
Trusts and derivatives of issued
similar (Note iii) share capital
Personal Family Corporate interests JBeAs Total He#T
interests interests interests itk Ak TR interests JBeA 7
AR FIFHiR AR HLHE2E (Wit iii) i A Tk
Executive directors: HfrEH

Michael John Green Ko B 1,272,000 - - 166,093,617 - 167,365,617 74.29%

(Note i)

(W i)
Daniel George Green FHE o B - - — 166,093,617 5,400,000 171,493,617 76.12%

(Note ii)

(Wit ii)
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick gt - - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000 2.22%

Non-executive directors: FHTEF
Christopher John [EE
David Clarke 200,000 - - - - 200,000 0.09%
Augustus Ralph Marshall Augustus Ralph Marshall - - - - - - -
Lim Ghee Keong iS¢

(alternate director) (B#ESE) - - - - - - -

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors:

V-Nee Yeh faies 74,444 -
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak M7 - -
Simon Murray BiR 343,487 -
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- - - 74,444 0.03%

- - - 343487 0.15%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (cont’d)

Notes:

(D Such shares were held through corporations on behalf of the Michael Green

Family Trust.

(i) Such shares were held through corporations on behalf of the Michael Green

Family Trust in which Mr Daniel George Green has a beneficial interest.

(iii) These represented interests of Options granted to directors under a share
option scheme to subscribe for shares of the Company, further details of

which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of
the Company are long positions. None of the directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures

of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company and/or any of their respective
associates had any interest and their position in the shares, underlying
shares owners and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of
the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2007, the Company had been
notified of the following substantial shareholder’s interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital. These interests are
in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the directors and chief

executives:
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (cont’d)

Pacific Investments (BVD) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Usaha

Tegas Sdn. Bhd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the directors are not
aware of any other persons who have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would be required to disclose to the Company pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into

or existed during the year.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are

set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 39.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 6 May 2008
to 9 May 2008 (both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of
shares can be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend and to
determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2008 annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 9 May 2008, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Unit 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than

4:30 pm on 5 May 2008.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this annual report,
at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held in

public hands.
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Subsequent Event

On 11 January 2008, the Group completed a share disposal transaction in
the capital of Kingspan China Limited (“KCL”), an associate company in
which the Group had a 20% equity interest, whereby the Group transferred
its entire interest represented by 2,000 ordinary shares in KCL to Kingspan
Holdings (Insulation) Limited (formerly as Kootherm Holdings Limited).
Upon completion of the disposal, KCL is no longer an associate of the

Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

with the directors.

Auditors
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment.
On behalf of the Board
Michael John Green

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2008

Report of the Directors
o

A% H R A

NZEENE—H+—H > AR SRS ER
FEARAR (TERAE D AR 2000%
RER SR B AR BBy > FEIG > AR B
SR T B A O A (DR e A T A
2,000 ) F Kingspan Holdings (Insulation)
Limited (Hii## /5 Kootherm Holdings Limited) °
RS- e N e e N AU /N
] o

BHEZAA

TR B O B T A D A S R A 2 e
B R A - S S i B B B R
B> OFEHEHEE - FFLE+ ) St —H ik
A 2 R A BB R o

23]
AR B IR L o R A B 2 T
o SRR A MO AT -

EHEE
KiG o Bk
S

R N

2R AR A A

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
i SRR S

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in fulfilling the responsibilities to shareholders. Our business
culture and practices are founded upon a common set of values that
govern our relationships with customers, employees, shareholders,
suppliers and the communities in which we operate. The Company also
acknowledges and appreciates its responsibility towards the society at

large and has embarked upon various initiatives to effectuate this.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) has
promulgated the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
which came into effect in January 2005. Throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied itself with the code provisions of the CG
Code except in certain circumstances where in the opinion of the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) are unsuitable to be adopted by the
Company at this stage. Details of such non-compliance are discussed

later in this section.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company, having made specific enquiry, confirms that all Directors
complied throughout the year with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’

securities transactions.

The Board

Composition of the Board

The board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises nine members. Apart
from the Chairman who is an executive Director, the Board comprises
two executive Directors and six non-executive Directors (including one
alternate Director) of which three are independent. The composition of
the Board is in conformity with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules which stipulates a minimum of three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one of the independent non-executive Director

possesses professional appropriate qualifications and expertise.
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The Board (cont’d)

Composition of the Board (cont’d)

Corporate Governance Report

The executive Directors are Messrs Michael John Green (Chairman), Daniel

George Green (Managing Director) and Lai Ka Tak, Patrick; the

non-executive Directors are Messrs Augustus Ralph Marshall (Mr Lim

Ghee Keong being the alternate Director to Mr Marshall) and Christopher

John David Clarke; and the independent non-executive Directors are
Messrs V-Nee Yeh, Thaddeus Thomas Beczak and Simon Murray CBE.
Mr Michael John Green is the father of Mr Daniel George Green and has

certain investments made in common with Mr Simon Murray. Biographies

of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 15 of this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board held 4 meetings. Details of Directors’

attendance to board meetings are set out below:
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No. of meetings

ik
Held during

Name of Directors Designation in the Board Category the year Attended
HARES AR 2B B Ly AE AT R R Y
Michael John Green Chairman Executive Director 4 4
kit o Bk e i
Daniel George Green Managing Director Executive Director 4 4
FHE » Bk Al Wir s
Lai Ka Tak Patrick Finance Director Executive Director 4 4
Ry P E R s
Augustus Ralph Marshall Director Non-executive Director 4 0

EH FHtTESR
Lim Ghee Keong Alternate Director to Non-executive Director 4 3
M Augustus Ralph Marshall FRATESR

Augustus Ralph Marshall

BEH

Christopher John David Clarke Director Non-executive Director 4 3
LS EH FfTESR
V-Nee Yeh Director Independent non-executive Director 4 4
MR B BT ES
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak Director Independent non-executive Director 4 4
SER i B AT
Simon Murray Director Independent non-executive Director 4 4*
Rtk R HH B AT

* Attended by Mr Michael John Green as alternate Director.

© KR e BB IR RE R SO LE o

2R AR A A

31



32

Corporate Governance Report
i SRR S

Division of Responsibilities

The Board is chaired by the Chairman and daily management is oversee
by the Managing Director (“MD”) whose role is similar to that of a CEO.
The Board members meet from time to time to discharge their duties
effectively including setting corporate strategic objectives; identifying
potential risk and affirming that available policies are in hand; delivering
standards of Directors, chief executives’ ethical behaviour; ensuring the
financial statements of the Group are prepared on going concern; and
disclosures are communicated to authorities and public on a timely basis.
The management formulates and implements the Board’s decisions while

the Board ratifies and monitors the same.

Mr Michael John Green and Mr Daniel George Green hold posts of the
Chairman and the MD respectively. This segregation ensures a clear
distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board

and the MD'’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business.

As the Chairman of the Company, Mr Michael John Green not only oversee
the effective running of the Board but also plays a full and constructive
part in the development and determination of the Group’s strategies and
overall commercial objectives. With close consultation with the Chairman,
other Board members and the management team, the MD develops the
Group’s strategies and implements the decision of the Board and its
committees. The Board also comprises independent non-executive
Directors who bring strong independent judgement, knowledge and

experiences to the Board’s deliberations.
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Directors’ Appointment

Notwithstanding the provisions of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term and no specific provisions
are available under the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) where
Directors are obliged to retire by rotation at least once every three years.
The Bye-laws provided that save that the Board shall have the absolute
discretion to determine whether or not the Chairman and/or the Managing
Director of the Company shall be subject to retirement by rotation, each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. To ensure the
smooth running and continuous adhering to the strategic view of the
Company, the Board believes that it is more practical for the Chairman/
Managing Director not to be subject to retirement by rotation. Though
the Bye-laws deviate from the CG Code, the Board considers it appropriate
as all Directors, including those non-executives, at present are effectively
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring

Director is eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2), any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
until the following general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election thereat.

During the year, there was neither resignation from nor new appointment
to the Board and all those Directors who retired by rotation at the 2007
Annual General Meeting were re-elected by shareholders. In this
circumstance, the Board was not called upon to consider new appointees

to fill Board vacancies.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005 with its
members comprising two independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director. Mr Thaddeus Thomas Beczak was appointed

Chairman of the Committee.
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Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee make recommendations to the Board in
respect of the Company’s policy on Directors’ remuneration packages.
The Committee helps to establish and maintain an appropriate and
competitive level of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate people
of highest caliber and experience needed to shape and execute strategy
and deliver shareholder value in the context of an ever more competitive
employment market. Remuneration packages to staff members and
Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s remuneration
policy, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market

conditions.

The Company has not adopted the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee as prescribed in the CG Code in full but has duly adopted its
own terms of reference that better suits the practical situation of the
Company. The Board considers that the key responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee shall focus on assessing the reasonableness of
the remuneration of and fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors.
The Board understands that the terms of reference adopted by the
Remuneration Committee deviates from rules B.1.3(a)-(e) of the CG Code
as its scope does not cover the senior management of the Company.
However, the Board considers that it is not practical for the Remuneration
Committee to adopt the full terms stipulated in the CG Code because the
management structure of the Group is relatively simple and its scale of
operations is modest. It is also noted that the executive Directors have
extensive experience in the industry and are fully qualified to determine
the remuneration packages of employees of the Company including the
senior management. It has always been the Company’s practice to provide
compensation with reference to the prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration details, together with the financial statements of the
Company, are also subject to review and approval by the Board annually.
As a result, it is considered more practical not to delegate the responsibility
to the Remuneration Committee to determine any specific remuneration
packages of the senior management. The Board believes that such
arrangement a) will maintain a formal and transparent procedure for
setting policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors; b) will not affect the Company
in providing transparent information of the Directors’ remuneration to
the public; ©) will give adequate authority to the Remuneration Committee
to protect the interest of the Company and the minority shareholders; d)
will enable the Company to maintain a reasonable balance of cost and
benefit. Adopted terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is

available on the website of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee members met once to
determine the remuneration policies of the Group. No executive Director
takes part in any discussion about his own remuneration. Details of
Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments and retirement benefits
and the granting of share options during the year are disclosed on pages

89 to 91 and 23 of this Annual Report respectively.

Composition of the Remuneration Committee and details of members’

attendance to the Committee meeting are set out below:
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No. of meetings

Name of members Designation in the Committee Held during the year i Attended
4 ZHENZ B AE AT R i e
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak Chairman 1 1
EES R

V-Nee Yeh Member 1 1
i A

Christopher John David Clarke Member 1 1
i 3 WA

Michael John Green Advisor 1 1
Kim o Bk s ]

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
that describe the authority and duties of the Committee. Such terms of
reference were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and in compliance with the code provisions
stipulated in the CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. V-Nee Yeh and
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak and a non-executive Director, Mr Christopher
John David Clarke, who among themselves possess appropriate
professional qualifications or expertise as required under rule 3.21 of the

Listing Rules. Mr V-Nee Yeh is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Adopted terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the

website of the Company.
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Audit Committee (cont’d)

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board. It provides an important
link between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of
the external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. In fulfilling
its responsibilities, the work of the Audit Committee during the year

include the followings:

1) a review of the draft annual and interim financial statements and
the draft results announcements of the Company focusing on main
areas of judgment, consistency of and changes in accounting policies
and adequacy of information disclosure prior to recommending them

to the Board for approval;

i) a review of the results of external audit and discussion with the

external auditors;

iii)  identify and mitigate potential risks in areas of operation and financial

information systems as well as the industry environment as a whole;

iv) a review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls, through review of the work undertaken by the

management and external auditors.

Composition of the Audit Committee and details of members’ attendance

to the Committee meetings are set out below:
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No. of meetings

Name of members Designation in the Committee Held during the year i Attended
B4 ZHENZ B A BT R W K ¥
V-Nee Yeh Chairman 2 2
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak Member 2 2
EEE A

Christopher John David Clarke Member 2 1
flj L2 =]
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, the fees paid/payable to the auditors in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group were as

follows:

efoe SRR 4t
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Amount (HKS)

Nature of services oA PR £ (o)
Audit services R 1,648,692
Non-audit services IF RS

(i) Tax services @ B 371,900

(i) Other services (i) HAtRES
Directors’ Acknowledgement to Prepare Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. In the statements, the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been made, and
relevant financial disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules have been

taken into account.

Relevant responsibility statement from the external auditors made pursuant

to the CG Code is set out in the Auditor’s Report on pages 40 to 41.

The Board has reviewed the business plan of the Group in respect of the
forthcoming financial year and is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the

financial statements.
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Internal Controls

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board is ultimately
responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The Company maintains a well-established control framework comprising
clear structures and accountabilities, well-understood policies and
procedures and budgeting and review process. The management meets
monthly with the executive Directors to review divisional financial
performance, business development plans, management issues, financial
budgets and forecasts and capital expenditure proposals. The executive
Directors also regularly receive reports from executives and functional

heads on key risk subjects.

The Board works together with the Audit Committee to discharge its
internal control responsibility for the ongoing oversight of the internal
control framework which provides an important key to reinforcing the

organization’s commitment to internal control.

The Company has implemented an annual programme to conduct an
in-depth review of financial, operational and compliance controls and
compliance with company financial policies at business units. The Board
reports its findings to the Audit Committee and any material issues are

reported and discussed with the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Investor Relations

The Chairmen of the Company and of the Committees are available at
annual general meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders of
the Company or other parties. To facilitate enforcement of shareholders’
rights, substantially separate issues at general meetings are dealt with

under separate resolutions.

Changes to constitutional documents

The Company has adopted at the annual general meeting held on 6 May
2005 a new set of Bye-laws to incorporate the changes promulgated by
the new Listing Rules effective on 1 January 2004, bringing it up to date
with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in line with current best

practices.

General meetings

General meetings provides a forum for the board to communicate with
the shareholders. During the year, the Company held one general meeting
on 25 May 2007. The following ordinary resolutions were passed at the

meeting by a show of hands:

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements
and the Reports of the Directors and auditors for the year ended 31
December 2006.

2. (@) To re-elect the following retiring Directors:
(i)  Mr Daniel George Green;
(i) Mr Simon Murray;
(iii) Mr Augustus Ralph Marshall;

(b) to authorize the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of

the Directors.

3. To re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the
Company and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their

remuneration.

To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue securities.

B. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase the

Company’s securities;

C. To extend the securities issue mandate granted to the Directors

to include securities repurchased by the Company.
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Auditor’s Report

23 Gl e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arnhold Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 42 to 130, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated profit and
loss account, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether

the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2008

Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

e = 2.
%/T\/El\ E\ﬁﬁi‘%

For the year ended
31 December

W = b AR

2007 2006
R U —EE b
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bk BT AT
Turnover BEH 5 387,904 297,550
Cost of sales S A 6 (302,634) (231,860)
Gross profit A5 | 85,270 65,690
Other revenues HAthie A 5,588 6,329
Operating expenses -4 7 (75,697) (65,398)
Gain on disposal of G-/ ES &
an investment property 16 439 -
Fair value loss on revaluation of HHREWHELZ
investment properties N TERER 16 - (801)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary o B B 2 W 1R 19 - (503)
Loss on disposal of a property RIKEL/E S o] 20 - (1,031)
Gain on disposal of an associate B N R IR g 22 2,667 -
Operating profit =iyl 18,267 4,286
Finance costs W54 A 8 (146) (196)
Share of loss of associates JREAL T 45N B s 1 (1,101) (1,767)
Profit before income tax R T A5 Rl Vs ) 17,020 2,323
Income tax expense iREsid 12 (215) (182)
Profit attributable to shareholders I BRI A1 ¥ 13 16,805 2,141
Basic earnings per share g FRC R AR 28 R 14 7.47 cents ¥l 0.95 cents # Al
Diluted earnings per share o TR 7 22 R 14 7.28 cents ¥l 0.95 cents YAl
Dividend e 15 9,913 =
Dividend per share (53498 15 4.4 cents ¥4l -

The notes on pages 49 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e EERER

At 31 December

“FRF LI R

RAE=AZ R
2007 2006
R LA —EALE
Note HK$000 HK$'000
BFGE W T T T
Non-current assets I

Investment properties 4 -C/ES 16 9,850 14,750
Property, plant and equipment e IS ] 17 43,807 44,883
Lease prepayments FHE AT 18 48,886 49,935
Interest in associates W8 N m e 2 22 — 5,102
Available-for-sale financial assets AR D A 23 3,159 2,318
Trade and other receivables B 5y K H AWK 26 - 467
105,702 117,455

Current assets B E
Inventories T 24 25,514 25,798
Construction contracts HELH 25 - 18
Trade and other receivables B 5y B oAt RE YK 26 115,177 70,831
Derivative financial instruments frid 4 T 27 2,597 1,063
Deferred income tax assets TESE I 15 A0 B 33 1,000 -
Current income tax recoverable B W T A5 B R[] 3T - 22
Cash and cash equivalents & R EEEY 28 74,524 52,702
218,812 150,434

Current liabilities B A
Trade and other payables B 5 K A AT R 29 104,822 66,394
Derivative financial instruments ks TR 27 58 308
Provisions Ecidi) 30 1,677 1,683
Current income tax liabilities TSR 292 =
106,849 68,445
Net current assets BB E R E 111,963 81,989

M AR A A
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e EERER

At 31 December

WA=

2007 2006

—RR LA SBEAE

Note HK$°000 HK$000

iz W T W T

Total assets less current liabilities B AR R B A 217,665 199,444
Non-current liabilities I E A fE

Deferred income tax liabilities PEFE T 15HL B R 33 214 425

Net assets B E 217,451 199,019
Capital and reserves A KAt

Share capital A 31 22,530 22,450

Reserves fetfe 32

Proposed final dividend TR RIS 9,913 =

Others HAth 185,008 176,569

Shareholders’ funds R &4 217,451 199,019

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2008. CREFR/NE=ZH] T HEFEREME -

Michael John Green Lai Ka Tak, Patrick
K o Bk R
Chairman Finance Director
E: HBES

The notes on pages 49 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated 5 49 £ 130 ERIMERE S ARG AR5 R Y B AR

financial statements. iy o
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Balance Sheet

EEREE

At 31 December

Rt+=H=1+—H
2007 2006
—RR LA —EEALE
Note HK$’000 HK$000
Bt s T wsHToo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 B % e
Investments in subsidiaries Kt s Rl 21 86,131 86,131
CURRENT ASSETS LB
Trade and other receivables B 5 B A REER 26 245 108
Amounts due from subsidiaries i Je8 2 7 R 3k 21 115,449 106,620
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R B8 28 180 125
115,874 106,853
CURRENT LIABILITIES 114
Trade and other payables B 5 K A AT R 29 265 1,119
265 1,119
NET CURRENT ASSETS LBl 115,609 105,734
NET ASSETS & I 201,740 191,865
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B B i i
Share capital il 31 22,530 22,450
Reserves Tt fts 32
Proposed final dividend k2 AR WIS 9,913 =
Others HoAth 169,297 169,415
SHAREHOLDERS’' FUNDS B 4 201,740 191,865
Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2008. CRERNE=Z ZF HEFEREEGHM -
Michael John Green Lai Ka Tak, Patrick
K o Bk R
Chairman Finance Director
R B EH

The notes on pages 49 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated 28 49 % 130 BB 5E 24 555 FAHS R 1 BE i &

financial statements. iy o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AR BlE B R

For the year ended
31 December

RET A= HILEE

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

2007 2006
R e
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt ek T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BERERE LR
ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax o A i ¥ ) 17,020 2,323
Depreciation of property, W - WS G IR
plant and equipment 3,770 2,995
Amortisation of lease prepayments FHE AR 1,049 1,016
Interest income FLEMA (1,540) (1,750)
Interest expenses FIE 146 196
Share of loss of associates JREA L B ] e 1) 1,101 1,767
Loss on disposal of property, EYIE - BRES X
plant and equipment A e 1R 8 15
Loss on disposal of a property L E YRR 20 - 1,031
Gain on disposal of an I EREYE
investment property Wi A 16 (439) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary H B BB A m e 1E 19 - 503
Gain on disposal of an associate BT A mll g 22 (2,667) =
Fair value loss on revaluation of EREYES
investment properties G 16 - 801
Net unrealised fair value gain fii 4l T B 2 53
on derivative financial instruments OB (1,844) (1,927)
Employee share-based 1 B e = W e S )
compensation benefits Gl 386 649
Impairment loss of available-for-sale A P
financial assets WA REE - 190
Reversal of surplus on revaluation of Al 2 Y PT HE L  E S
impaired available-for-sale financial B 2 R A
assets to consolidated profit and LAEER
loss account - (65)
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL BB EARGEE) 16,990 7,744
(Increase)/decrease in amount due JRE WS 45N 7 22 R K
from associates (X b (131) 191
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD, () 284 (6,668)
Decrease/(increase) in construction RS, ()
contracts 18 ©)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K Ho At BE WK in (43,879) (110)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 N HA A s fn
other payables () 38,428 (2,702)
Decrease in provisions B © (47)
CASH GENERATED FROM/ REFEELE (EH)
(USED IN) OPERATIONS Z B AT 11,704 (1,597)
Interest received A5 F) 8. 1,540 1,750
Interest paid EATHLE (146) (196)
Hong Kong profits tax paid FWAEEL (355) (34)
Overseas tax paid MEHMBETE S (757) (112)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REFHMEE S (M)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2B EFH 11,986 (189)

Annual Report 2007



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEEHSMER

For the year ended
31 December

REF A= HILEE

2007 2006
e 2 2 3 TRTINAE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BFRE wEW T T T
CASH FLOWS FROM B RH M B &R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of property, IEEYE - BES X
plant and equipment AR S (2,717) (14,341)
Proceeds from disposal of a property BT R 20 — 2,254
Proceeds from disposal of property, EYE - BRES X
plant and equipment AR TS K 15 =
Proceeds from disposal of I EREYE
an investment property Frig 16 5,339 =
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary H S RIS A ) iR 19 - 1,555
Proceeds from disposal of an associate BB\ \] TSR 22 11,199 -
Loan to an associate BT W B T (4,400) (6,996
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ BRRBIELE, . ()
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES Z BT 9,436 (17,528)
CASH FLOWS FROM 9 T O 2 B i
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Proceeds from issuance of (R g=w il iR E N
ordinary shares 400 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM 56 ) O A B 4 R
FINANCING ACTIVITY 400 —
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ~ B&RB &SI
CASH EQUIVALENTS Bim,/ (W4) §% 21,822 17,717)
Cash and cash equivalents A 2 Bl K B S EY)
at the beginning of the year 52,702 70,419
Cash and cash equivalents L Bl BB a5 EY
at the end of the year 74,524 52,702

55 49 % 130 H BB EE 2 S5 BPBF R 9 B T

financial statements. A

The notes on pages 49 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated

TR AR AW M AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SO R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BEZRFLEF AT PSR
Available- Employee
for-sale  share-based
investment compensation

Share Share reserve reserve Retained  Contributed
capital premium Wik g 1 BBy earnings surplus Total
JBeA JReruEy R S5 i i REEA HARE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T W T BT T BT

At 1 January 2006 REEEANE—HA—H 22,450 92,389 (334) 1,100 79,327 808 195,740
Profit attributable to shareholders e SRR i 1 = = - - 2,141 - 2,141
Employee share-based 18 RS It 2

compensation benefits Ha - - - 049 - = 649
Surplus on revaluation EX = = 554 = = = 554

Reversal of surplus on revaluation of T BE ki 5
impaired available-for-sale financial G2 BAEEE

assets to consolidated profit and EABE

loss account - - (65) - - - (65)
At31 December 2006 WEFZNFFZA=1—H 22,450 92,389 155 1,749 81,468 808 199,019
Profit attributable to shareholders I SR i - = = = 16,805 = 16,805
Employee share-based 1 B It 2

compensation benefits A = = = 386 - - 386
Employee share option scheme: 1 A et ) -

Issuance of ordinary shares [ ER 80 320 - - - - 400
Surplus on revaluation HERA - - 841 - - - 841
At 31 December 2007 REFRLEFSH TN 22,530 92,709 996 2,135 98,273 808 217,451
Representing: HHS
2007 Proposed final dividend CERLEERRZAME 9913
Others Hpl 88,360
Retained earnings as at REZZLETAET—HR

31 December 2007 o EA 98,273

The notes on pages 49 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated 28 49 & 130 B Mt 5 2 45 & BAHS 7 5 1) % B 3

financial statements. i3 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General Information
The principal activities of Arnhold Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are (i) trading, (ii)

manufacturing and export and (iii) retail and renovation operations.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, Church

Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on the main board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2008.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss and investment properties,

which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas

involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Standard, amendments and interpretations

effective in 2007

HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures”, and
the complementary amendment to HKAS 1,
‘Presentation of financial statements — Capital
disclosures’, introduces new disclosures relating to
financial instruments and does not have any impact
on the classification and valuation of the Group’s
financial instruments, or the disclosures relating to

taxation and trade and other payables.

HK({IFRIC) — Int 8, “Scope of HKFRS 27, requires
consideration of transactions involving the issuance
of equity instruments, where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the fair value of
the equity instruments issued in order to establish
whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS
2. This standard does not have any impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

(@)

v

Standard, amendments and interpretations

effective in 2007 (cont’d)

e  HK(FRIC) — Int 10, “Interim financial reporting and
impairment”, prohibits the impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill and
investments in equity instruments and in financial
assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent
balance sheet date. This standard does not have any

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2007 but not relevant for the Group’s
operations

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
to published standards are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007 but they are

not relevant to the Group’s operations:

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 7, “Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29, Financial reporting in

hyper-inflationary economies”; and

. HK(FRIC) — Int 9, “Re-assessment of embedded

derivatives”.

Ao BB R T R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
bave not been early adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2008 or later periods, but the Group
has not early adopted them:

) HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial

Statements” (effective from 1 January 2009);

. HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing costs” (effective from
1 January 2009);

e  HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” (effective from 1
January 2009);

. HK(FRIC) — Int 11, “HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury

share transactions” (effective from 1 March 2007);

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

(©)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
bave not been early adopted by the Group (cont’d)
. HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, “Service Concession

Arrangements” (effective from 1 January 2008);

e  HK(FRIC) — Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes”
(effective from 1 July 2008); and

o HK(FRIC) — Int 14, “HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction” (effective from

1 January 2008).

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of the above new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards but is not yet in a
position to state whether they would have a significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.2 Comnsolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the

Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated

from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the

basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.4

2.5

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity

method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of

segments operating in other economic environments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

)

©

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated profit

and loss account.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(1)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)
(c) Group companies (cont’d)

(i) income and expenses for each profit and loss account
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as

a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in equity are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss

account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factory, warehouses and offices.
Buildings are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. All other property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benetfits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the consolidated profit and loss account during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Ao BB R T R

2 HEEGHBORWE (8

2.6

2.7

Al RES (%)
(c) EMA (&)
G A EE RN AR A

P MEARIRTE (BRIF M HE
R AKL S B HIER Y
REI BN A A E ;I
THUT - WCIHB A S A
IR BRI s K

P A Eh AH 7 A 1 R 5, 2 R e
aR Ay et ) B ST AL A E o

(iii)

TEAR IR H IR 03 P SE 5 Y 1
o DR A B R S A
SFBCE B h g BN TR T AR A B
RGNS R o 8 th—TH S
Y > ARG HE R
RS2y th 6 B 9 — R o

LERE S Y T

T ERAERS - AREAHAE -
TR A R R KB AR
AT HAtL ) 2 ~ e Sl JBR 2 A
AT 85 AR R TR B AR o R S A
BRSO ZIH B BRI I B S -

FCAR A A e B2 IH B A7 B B R 2R
KE | 2 AT AT REMAAGEF > T % IH
) JSAS BE P SE 5B F > A ELAR 1 B
FE W R T (L ek R A S B (H
) o BrA HAbAER B PR 2 A Y S
A ] A A A 1 TR B 2R 5B o

M AR A A

57



58

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

oy

B R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.7

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 2 — 5 years
Furniture and equipment 3 — 5 years
Plant and machinery 5 — 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within operating expenses, in the consolidated profit and loss

account.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represents interest in leasehold land and
land use rights and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is provided
to write off cost of lease prepayments on a straight-line basis

over the respective lease periods.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents investment in land and
buildings on which construction work has not been completed,
and is carried at cost which includes construction expenditure
incurred, interest and other direct costs attributable to the
construction less impairment losses. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
property, plant and equipment when the asset is substantially
ready for its intended use. No amortisation is provided in respect

of construction in progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 HEEGHBORWE (8

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.10 Investment properties

2.10 BeEWE

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/
or capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the

companies in the consolidated Group.

After initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset, determined annually by independent

qualified valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about
rental income from future leases in the light of current market

conditions.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in Note

2.24.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of
those outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as investment
property; others, including contingent rent payments, are not

recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting

purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/T\

A BATS i 2% bt 5

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.10 Investment properties (cont’d)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of
this item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a
revaluation of property, plant and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss

account.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the assets carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated profit and
loss account during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

2.11 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates

and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)

2.12 Financial assets

The

Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends

on the purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determine the classification of its financial assets

at initial recognition.

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current

assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are classified as trade and

other receivables in the balance sheet (Note 2.15).
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)
2.12 Financial assets (cont’d)

(¢) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet

date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated profit
and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through consolidated profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the consolidated profit and loss

account in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 WEEEEORKE (8)
(cont’d)

2.12 Financial assets (cont’d)
(¢) Available-for-sale financial assets (cont’d)

212 MBE R (%)
(o) WHlEMERE (4)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary

securities classified as available for sale are recognised in

equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated profit
and loss account as gains or losses from investment

securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as

possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
securities classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account — is removed from equity and recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account on
equity instruments are not reversed through the

consolidated profit and loss account.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.

2.14 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When the
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably
and it is probable that the contract will be profitable, contract
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract. When it
is probable total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expenses

immediately.

The Group uses the ‘percentage of completion method’ to
determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the balance sheet date as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract. Costs
incurred in the year in connection with future activity on a
contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the
stage of completion. They are presented as inventories,

prepayments or other assets, depending on their nature.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid
by customers and retention are included within trade and other

receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)
2.14 Construction contracts (cont’d)
The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised

profits (Iess recognised losses).

2.15 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the consolidated profit

and loss account.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities.
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Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it

is probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is

controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in

the consolidated profit and loss account over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group

has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability

for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)
2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash

and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held

at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments

with

original maturities of three months or less, and bank

overdrafts.

2.20 Employee benefits

(@)

()

Long service payments

Provision for long service payments is recognised for the
best estimate of the long service payments that are required
to be made to the employees of the Group in respect of
their services to date less any amounts that would be

expected to be met out of the Group’s retirement schemes.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made by
the Group for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance

sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Ao BB R T R

R EORMR ()

2.18 B3 R ICfb HEAS 5k
5 5y B oAb A KA 22 LA 2 T (e
A8 AR I B PR ) B e i i A

HHE -

219 RERBREFHY
Bl R Bl &5 EY s F 4 - B
R ERAT AT B Al s 3 e M DA
B2 =8 A 8 LA R I > DL ERT
B o

2.20 & B A
() RHIREZ
R WIIRES & I ZH R £ iR B
1o 2 o A BA i A 2 1= 1 IR s
SRS FTER A AL
B AR PR 4 T ) o S A 2 AT AT SRR
I -

(b) R HEZEH
18 B 2 AR I 5 = A1 s
FERD o AR R A5 1 L IR
B E fe itz Mess i i A 2 AR R
it B A B -

18 B 2 Jifl S B B FR IR
77T LAHERR o

M AR A A

67



68

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)
2.20 Employee benefits (cont’d)

(©)

(4

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated profit and loss account, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 HEEGHBORWE (8

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(cont’d)
2.20 Employee benefits (cont’d) 2.20 RBHA ()

(e) BUhEEM

(e) Pension obligations

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme regulated under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”) and AIA-JF
Premium Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”),
collectively known as (“Retirement Schemes”) which are
available to all employees. Contributions to the Retirement
Schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. The
Retirement Schemes cost charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account represents contributions paid or payable

by the Group to the Retirement Schemes.

The Group’s contributions to Retirement Schemes are
expensed as incurred. Contributions to the ORSO scheme
are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. The assets of the Retirement Schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in an

independently administered fund.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance

sheet date are discounted to present value.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.

2.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

2.23 Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated profit and loss account on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset
is included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the

asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 WEEEEORKE (8)
(cont’d)

2.24 Revenue recognition

2.24 WOATERR

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating

sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable
until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction

and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered at customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when customers have accepted the goods and

the related risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from individual construction contract is recognised
by using the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the revenue earned to date as determined by
surveyors compared with the total estimated revenue of the

contract.

Revenue from sale of services is recognised in the accounting

period in which the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(cont’d)

2.24 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account in equal instalments over

the period of the lease.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s shareholders.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
financial derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The fair value is
determined based on the market prices in active markets
including recent market transactions or valuation techniques
using discounted cash flow and options pricing models, as
appropriate. For derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recognised

immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

2.27 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

3 Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses

derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d)
Under the Group’s risk management programme, each
department identifies and documents their key tasks and the
risks associated with their tasks. The risks are summarised in a
risk assessment program where they are graded by likelihood
and consequence and where the procedures and controls for

managing the risks are recorded.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The operation of the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. To mitigate risks
arising from fluctuations in exchanges rates, forward
foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge the

currency exposure of the Group.

The Group’s risk management policy is to hedge
the anticipated cash flows (mainly purchase of
merchandise and inventory) in each major foreign

currency for the subsequent 12 months.

At 31 December 2007, if HK dollar had weakened/
strengthened by 3% against the Euro with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$1,370,000 (2006: HK$823,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of Euro-denominated cash
and cash equivalents and foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of Euro-denominated trade
payables offset by gains/losses on derivative financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
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Ao BB R T R

3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a) Market risk (cont’d)

)

(i)

(i1)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)

At 31 December 2007, if HK dollar had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all other
variable held constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$2,097,000 (2006: HK$1,327,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of RMB-denominated

trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated balance sheet either as available-for-

sale or at fair value through profit and loss.

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes

in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
It has policies in place to ensure that sales of goods and
services are provided to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group manages its exposure to
derivative counter-parties by taking into account their
financial strength and are limited to high-credit-quality

financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(¢) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and making available an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, the Group maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under

committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserves and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flow. All trade payables and
customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 are
expected to be settled within one year. The impact of
discounting is not significant on the basis of expected

cash flow.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’, as shown

in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

The Group maintained no bank borrowing and zero gearing

as at 31 December 2007 and 2006.
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3 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as trading and available-for-sale financial assets) is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for

financial liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using

forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation of
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities of disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available

to the Group for similar financial instruments.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a) Impairment of assets
The Group conducts impairment reviews of assets when events
of changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable or annually in accordance with relevant
accounting standards. An impairment loss is recognised when
the carrying amount of an asset is lower than the greater of its
net selling price or the value in use. In determining the value
in use, management assess the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of
the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Estimates and judgements are applied in determining these

future cash flows and the discount rate.

(b) Impairment of receivables
The impairment of receivables is assessed based on the
evaluation of the collectibility and aging analysis, including
the creditworthiness and the collection history of each customer.
Judgement is required when assessing the realisability of these

receivables.

Ao BB R T R

4 BHRErHEST RN B
TR f WA SRR AR
AFCA PR FHET A > A5 1A BT L T A
{5 B &y BRHOE KA LRI TL I -

ARG B ARARAE A AL - $E R
WG RAR D UL AS AR o 15
B IR B R A B ) R R A B M T (L5 1
HE R TR A AR SR AT o

(€))

®)

PR WA

AR I TE 35 AT R i R R T < R
TR B S I B DL R > AR
R R AELIR DL - Sl 2 AR BR )
Tt BAET B o BE
T SR T LB T 58 0 198 {1 J ok PR (L
I PR A R > R TR T DA
we o EHLRETE P EE A EE
IRF - ZF 0l % Y (T 30 f]2E A  oR fe
B B B T A A A o R
A B 4 U X 4 G B ZEAE A
fpsEil

JHE VB Mk AL

JRE WAL R (L A2 AR A T SR A 2
MR 2 BT > AL RS 2
B SO TR AL Bk o TE ST AL % SE IR
W B 2 e 4 5 B IR A A H BT o

M AR A A

77



78

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

oy

B R T R

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(cont’d)

©

@

Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are revalued at the
balance sheet date on market value basis by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations are based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and may differ
from the actual results. In making the judgement, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet

date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment 5
Information
The principal activities of the Group are (i) trading, (i) manufacturing
and export and (iii) retail and renovation operations. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 21 of the consolidated

financial statements.

Ao BB R T R

BIRB JABBON B 5 R

AEBMEELEREOE Y » GDAEE RS
H R GiDZEE RSB o WEA R 2 158
SEVSHINHN 5 B MBS E M 5E 21 -

2007 2006
L —EEAR
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T T 7
Turnover R
Sales of inventories HEABERA 387,904 297,550
Other revenues Hitsg A
Interest income e ERAT AKX
from bank deposits Z A B WA 1,540 1,750
Administration fee received from ] B N S B 2 A 7 B0
the associates (note 37(a)) (FfteE 37Ca)) 1,261 1,117
Gross rental income from TGz BHEA
investment properties 883 665
Sundry income METHISA 1,904 2,797
5,588 6,329
Total revenues HA 393,492 303,879
TR AR AR LR E A R A
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Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment
Information (cont’d)
The analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business

and geographical segment is set out below.

Primary reporting format — business segments

From 2007 onwards, the Group has re-organised its operations
around three business segments. The segmental analysis below has
therefore been restated and the original two segments (being the
trading in and the supply of buildings products and engineering
equipment) have been replaced by (i) trading (ii) manufacturing
and export and (iii) retail and renovation operations. Management
believes that this analysis better reflects the way in which the business
is now managed and its future strategic direction. The comparative
figures for year ended 31 December 2006 is then restated in

conformity for presentation.

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise holding of investment
properties and other properties, neither of which are of a sufficient

size to be reported separately.

Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, lease prepayments, investments in associates,
inventories and trade and other receivables. Unallocated assets
comprise deferred income tax assets, current income tax recoverable,
available-for-sale financial assets, derivative financial instruments

and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities comprise trade and other payables and provisions.
Unallocated liabilities comprise deferred income tax liabilities, current

income tax liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
The operation of the business is mainly carried in three main
geographical areas, (i) Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) Mainland China

and (iii) Overseas.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

Information (cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments

5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment

5 BB - JCBOA B SRR

(%)

LR LS VEMSE 2 g |

Manufacturing Retail and Other

Trading and export renovation operations  Unallocated Total

2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007

S RERME BEHRES Jefb s KA i

CRBUE CRBLE CRRLE CRBLE CRRLE CRRLULE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BTG BT BTG

Total segment turnover S A AR 242430 115,699 68,008 - - 426,137
Inter-segment turnover il (857)  (37,376) - - - (38233)

241,573 78,323 68,008 - - 387,904

Segment results and operating profit 7P SERE K 4% i A 18,873 5,869 12,768 (203)  (19,040) 18,267
Finance costs IH 2 A (146)
Share of loss of associates TGS A Rl R (1,101)

Profit before income tax B A5 i i ) 17,020
Income tax expense g s (215)

Profit attributable to shareholders FRE SR A s 1 16,805

Segment assets NHEE 93,542 52,270 19,638 76,684 82,380 324,514
Segment liabilities AHAE (63,684)  (15,418)  (21,160) 949)  (5,852) (107,063)

Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to consolidated assets

and liabilities as follows:

o I AR AT R K B RO AR

o

Assets Liabilities

¥ £

HK$'000 HK$°000

AT AT

Segment assets/liabilities A RE Bl 242,134 101,211
Unallocated: KA :

Deferred income tax A PTASBL 1,000 214

Current income tax iRy = 292

Available-for-sale financial assets AL B A R 3,159 =

Derivative financial instruments it &R TR 2,597 58

Cash and cash equivalents Bl K 58 74,524 -

Others HAthy 1,100 5,288

Total At 324,514 107,063

TR R

M AR A A
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Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment
Information (cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

5 BB - JCBOA B SRR

(%)

HERERG X - RHLB (H)

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Manufacturing  Retail and Other
Trading  andexport  renovation  operations  Unallocated Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
$5% EERED FEREE Jefb %8 KA A
SRBLE CRBLE O CRFUE ZZBLE 0 Z3%EE C3%E
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T Wl T EHT T
Capital expenditure EAB S (82) (1,304) 191 (1,140) - 2,717)
Other non-cash expenses HAt IR B4 B 5
Depreciation of property, W2E - Beds
plant and equipments BT (282) (1,358) (882) (1,248) - (3,770)
Amortisation of lease prepayments  flE AR 25 - (87 - (962) - (1,049)
Provision for impairment WIS (L
of receivables (484) - - - - (484)
Write back of provision WIS (L
for impairment of receivables HEm 527 - - - - 527
Provision for stock obsolescence IR T B 28 (1,708) (10) - - (1,690)
Write back of provision IR B A
for stock obsolescence 94 - - - - 94
Provision for long service payments = BIRF 4 i 111 34 35 95 - 275
Provision for employee g & e == B it
leave entitlements (196) (60) (40) (64 - (360)
Gain on disposal of HE BB
an investment property - - - 439 - 439
Gain on disposal of an associate TS A AR - - - 2,667 - 2,667
Employee share-based 1 B e == B e
compensation benefits w2 fa - - - (386) - (386)
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5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment 5
Information (cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

BB BB B REOR
(%)
HRRHOTA — BN ()

(Restated)
(E51)
Manufacturing Retail and Other

Trading and export renovation operations Unallocated Total

2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006

By EERED BEREE HAb 2R KA okl

“EERE O CETRE CERTRE CZRRE CERTRE CIRRE

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

BT T T BT BT BT

Total segment turnover Oy A0 228,682 58,116 36,123 = - 32291
Inter-segment turnover vilalien (189) (25,182 = = = (25,371

228 493 32,934 36,123 = - 297,550

Segment results and operating profit 73 FB3ER J 48 i 21,498 73 4,851 (6,056)  (16,080) 4,280
Finance costs g3 dii (196)
Share of loss of associates T A58 /A (1,767)

Profit before income tax B e {5 B Hir e 2,323
Income tax expense Jfast (182)

Profit attributable to shareholders B S PR i 2,141

Segment assets G 75,764 39,323 8,047 82,484 57169 262,787

Interest in associates s\ Al AR - - - 5,102 - 5,102

267,889
Segment liabilities AT (48,973) (6,670) (7,454) (1,819) (3954  (68,870)

Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to consolidated assets

and liabilities as follows:

o I AR AT R K A RO AR

T

Assets Liabilities

B =L

HK$'000 HK$'000

T T

Segment assets/liabilities ISR, AR 210,720 64,916
Unallocated: RO -

Deferred income tax AEAE I A5 Fd — 425

Current income tax (=3 G T 22 =

Available-for-sale financial assets AT D S 2,318 308

Derivative financial instruments fitE TR 1,063 =

Cash and cash equivalents B T a5 18 52,702 -

Others HAthy 1,064 3,161

Total At 267,889 68,870

CTE AR AR M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

BB BB B REOR
(%)
HRRHOTA — BN ()

5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment 5
Information (cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (cont’d)

(Restated)
(E31)
Manufacturing Retail and Other
Trading and export renovation operations Unallocated Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
85 RERED BELEE Jofto s RO L
“FENE ZETNE ZERNE ZERNE ZERANE CERTNE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T BT T BT BT T
Capital expenditure EAB (298)  (13,293) (306) (444) - (1434D
Other non-cash expenses HAt IR B4 B 5
Depreciation of property, W3k~ Beds
plant and equipment R (347) (744) (730) 1,174 = (2995)
Amortisation of lease prepayments  flE AR 25 - @D = 995) = (1,016)
Provision for impairment WIS (L
of receivables (1,186) = = = = (1,186)
Write back of provision i
for impairment of receivables 322 - 34 - - 356
Provision for stock obsolescence IR T B (62) (355) (53) - - (470)
Write back of provision I B A
for stock obsolescence 89 = = = = 89
Provision for long service payments = BIRF 4 i 93) 7 (12) 25 - (73)
Provision for employee g & e = B it
leave entitlements 46 (44) (50) 68) = (116)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 1 R 7 R = = = (503) = (503)
Loss on disposal of a property &Y R = = = (1,031) = (1,031
Fair value loss on revaluation EERENEL
of investment properties AVEkER = = = (801) = (801)
Employee share-based i 5 e = B e
compensation benefits ahl 2 g - - - (649) = (649)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

5 Turnover, Other Revenues and Segment 5 BEH - LB RS BER
Information (cont’d) (%)
KE R — Hu bk 43 58

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

Segment Capital
Turnover results Total assets expenditure
2007 2007 2007 2007
B Vg E3 e j: NI B3
TRRLAE “RRUAE “RRUAE e 2 S
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
w0 T T BT 0
Hong Kong and Macau s M P 282,803 54,914 171,705 1,437
Mainland China H A 26,778 7,176 58,037 1,280
Overseas 14 78,323 23,180 12,392 -
387,904 85,270 2,717
Unallocated costs Ko Be AR A (67,003)
Operating profit 28 1 ) 18,267
Unallocated assets RO & E 82,380
Total assets MG 324,514
(Restated)
(FF1))
Segment Capital
Turnover results Total assets expenditure
2006 2006 2006 2006
B IEES G GBS
TRETINGE e =2 9% 2 e =2 oY 2 e =2 9A%:2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T W T T T
Hong Kong and Macau AUk SR 240,600 49,903 157,632 900
Mainland China R A 24,013 4,750 40,869 13,441
Overseas A1 32,937 11,037 7,117 -
297,550 65,690 14,341
Unallocated costs KA FR AR (61,404)
Operating profit R 1 ) 4,286
Interest in an associate il /N 5,102
Unallocated assets ROl B 57,169
Total assets HERE 267,889

TR R

M AR A A
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Ao BB R T R

6 Cost of Sales 6 SR

2007 2006

TRR AR ZEREINE

HK$°000 HK$°000

T T IT

Cost of inventories sold e B A 301,513 233,824
Cost of construction contracts A A A - (1,981
Cost of consumable inventories THAEAE BN AS 2,965 1,944

Net unrealised fair value gain i 4 T H 2 REAE

on derivative financial instruments N AR VR BLF (1,844) (1,927)
302,634 231,860
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»‘/T\ ji%i&%% I}ﬁ IILII_.

7 Operating Expenses 7 RBHX
2007 2006
ZRFLEE ZRENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT 5
Administrative expenses: TBCEM -
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) fE BAE B S (BiFaE 9) 38,020 32,909
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EEHM S (FFE 10) 7,442 7,245
Depreciation of property, W - HET G
plant and equipment 3,625 2,995
Amortisation of lease prepayments E B T A kA 1,049 1,016
Operating lease rentals on MEFOMNFE=EZ
propetties paid to third parties RETHA A 3,654 3,579
Travelling expenses SR 2,959 2,491
Entertainment expenses ZHEE 1,126 893
Management fee EIEH 1,440 1,440
Stamps, postage and telephone TREE - T KRR 878 1,090
Auditor’s remuneration 12 By RN 4 1,649 1,628
Legal and professional fees ECYNEE S E 2,856 296
Advertising & promotion expenses [ R 474 625
65,172 56,207
Other operating expenses: HA & B -
Write back of provision for JRE MU 3 A
impairment of receivables £ (527) (356)
Provision for impairment of receivables — JEMCGK IR F M 484 1,186
Write back of provision for IR G
stock obsolescence M 4) (89)
Provision for stock obsolescence R IR A7 B 1,690 470
Provision for long service payments T A RS 4 (275) 73
Provision for employee & B e = B
leave entitlements B 360 116
Loss on disposal of property, B WS S
plant and equipment Z 18 8 15
Exchange difference SRR 14 3
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AT D S
financial assets Z W AE Rk E - 190
Reversal of surplus on revaluation of Al B PR T AR o B A
impaired available-for-sale financial HEZ BERES
assets to consolidated profit and FREHEmR
loss account - (65)
Sundry expenses HETE B S 8,865 7,648
10,525 9,191
75,697 05,398

TR AR AR ZOREE R AR AR (87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

8 Finance Costs 8 WMHEHM
2007 2006
—RR L TRBINE
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T IT
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts $RATIE SR BB S 146 196
9 Employee Benefit Expenses 9 B AP
2007 2006
e L B
HK$’000 HK$°000
WM T LT
Wages and salaries T & K5 36,318 31,020
Termination benefits i AR A AE 109 472
Contributions to ORSO scheme ARG T S AR
(note 11) (3% 11) 1,027 885
Contributions to MPF scheme (note 11)  sfEasT#EEER (B 11) 531 465
Employee share-based compensation 5 e == ROt ] A )
benefits (note 32) (BfF5E 32) 35 67
38,020 32,909
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

10 Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Emoluments

(a) Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to

(a) FEEWNE

10 #mFRHRAEARZME

MRIEH N RGBS 161 Mtk ds e At

directors pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies THE RO T
Ordinance is as follows:
2007 2006
TRRLe TR
HKS$°000 HK$'000
W T oo
Fees G 750 750
Salaries and other benefits i M HAthAw A 5,221 4,717
Discretionary bonus [LORr=E (AN 282 639
Year end bonus SEHAEAL 427 198
Retirement Schemes contributions B /R4: 51 F| LK 411 359
Employee share-based & B 1 =2 B AR RE 5 1 ) 2 A )
compensation benefits (note 32) (Ff$3E 32) 351 582
7,442 7,245

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$750,000

(2006: HK$750,000) paid to non-executive directors and

independent non-executive directors during the year.

“FRF LI R

W 4 LR AR B TR AT T IR
TER LB IERATEF 2 ML
# 750,000 T (BB K

750,000 JG) ©

M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

10 Directors’ and Senior Management’s 10 HHFRHHREHAHRZME
Emoluments (cont’d) (%)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (cont’d) (@ =ML (8
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BEZEZLELH=ZT—HILE
December 2007 is set out below: B A EHENMEN T
Employee
share-based
Pension compensation
scheme benefits Other 2007
Discretionary Yearend contribution  JEHHEEFNE benefit Total
Fee Salary bonus bonus ke B 4 inkind ~ “FFLAE
Director Hw s #E R fEAL L5 3N il ZHifl J ki o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T R T R T R T LA

Michael John Green AH o Bk - 1,669 - 139 167 - 310 2,285
Daniel George Green FHE o Bk - 983 - 148 118 192 576 2,017
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick -t - 1,683 282 140 126 159 - 2,390
Augustus Ralph Marshall 150 - - - - - - 150
Lim Ghee Keong MR - - - - - - - -
Christopher John David Clarke 3 150 - - - - - - 150
Simon Murray R 150 - - - - - - 150
V-Nee Yeh R 150 - - - - - - 150
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak AR 150 - - - - - - 150
750 4,335 282 427 411 351 886 7,442
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BEEZENET _H=+—HIL&F
December 2006 is set out below: > BaEHENMEm R
Employee
share-based
Pension  compensation
scheme benefits Other 2006
Discretionary Yearend  contribution (B B benefit Total
Fee Salary bonus bonus R’IkE et inkind ~ ZEEAF
Director #F [ie3 #a FEA SERIEAL G [[:270 Akl HbAA A
HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HK$000
S WHT S Wi BT WHT T T
Michael John Green Ko Eik = 1,668 = 70 167 = 115 2,020
Daniel George Green FHE « Bk - 828 321 04 77 310 576 2,176
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick RER - 1,530 318 64 115 m - 2,299
Augustus Ralph Marshall 150 - - - - - - 150
Lim Ghee Keong M = = = = = = = =
Christopher John David Clarke ~ fij £ 150 = = = = = = 150
Simon Murray R 150 - - - - - - 150
V-Nee Yeh R 150 - - - - - - 150
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak HRME 150 - - - - - - 150
750 4,026 039 198 359 582 091 7,245
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Ao BB R T R

10 Directors’ and Senior Management’s 10 HEREGHREMABZME
Emoluments (cont’d) (%)
(b) Five highest paid individuals ) FifimrRmeEZ AL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2006: three) were directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note (a) above. The highest emoluments payable to the

remaining two (2006: two) individuals during the year is as

SR A I E-UNS R VA e ==
NEE =) EE S HECME DR
ESCHEEOBER < AER - AT AR W
i (ZFTNEE W) Femme AL

follows: o
2007 2006
R Uk B
HK$’000 HK$000
T WHT I
Salaries and other benefits e S H At AR R 1,795 1,554
Discretionary bonuses M E AL AL 434 357
Year end bonus FRACAL 152 65
Retirement Schemes contributions  EBR & FT# it EK 76 85

Employee share-based & B e = B AR S 1 3 2 A

compensation benefits - 38
2,457 2,099

The emoluments of the two (2006: two) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following band:

W (ZFFNAE W) e A
L MEsEEmT

Number of individuals
A
2007 2006
Emoluments’ band PO 4 =2 S CRELAE ZRTNAF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 #5 ¥ 1,000,001 76— # ¥ 1,500,000 TG 2 2

The Group usually determines and pays discretionary bonus
to employees (including directors) around January/February
each year based on the actual financial results of the Group
for the preceding year. The discretionary bonuses shown above
therefore represent actual payments to the employees (including
directors) during the current financial year in relation to

performance for the preceding year.

“FRF LI R

AR A WA A — A B ARGR
AR 2 B R A SRR TR BT IR
MEEEAL TR S (RAE#HSE) - Hit
P o AR B RS T B
(BLFRTEES) A BRI AT — 4 B A1

M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

11

12

Retirement Schemes

The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme were reduced by
contributions forfeited on those employees who left the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totalling HK$81,000 (2006: HK$203,000) were fully

utilised during the year.

Contributions of HK$268,000 (2006: HK$251,000) were payable to

the Retirement Schemes at the year-end.

Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) on estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profit has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation (charged)/credited to the audited

consolidated profit and loss account represents:

11

12

i N |
R B W] A BORAS AR TR LR IR GIRT
B > B S B e A VRS AS SE 1)
ZAEEK o B M A LAWK 81,000
g6 (ZEFNAE - ZE 203,000 00) A
TR ERNE A o

TREEAEIRE > BT TR IR G H 2 Ak ¥
268,000 76 (ZERENAE - ZHs¥ 251,000
JG) e

P38

ARAE 2 ELIIT A5 Ao 0 3l i R B 0 A
IR ZR175% (ZFERE  17.5%)
VRSB o 5 5N R BLIE TR IRACAE BE I 2 A
FT IR s P AN A M SR 2 T B R 2
B ABLEFE -

BEGHFSBEERD (0B FIATIIZ
BLIESZH
For the year ended

31 December

W = b AR

2007 2006

—BBUE —RRAR

HK$’000 HK$000

T koo

Company and subsidiaries A ) K it 2
Current income tax TR

Hong Kong profits tax T FIERL (468) 70
Overseas taxation 1 AMBIE (958) (112)
Deferred income tax (note 33) PIEITASRL (5T 33) 1,211 -
(215) (182)

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12 Income Tax Expense (cont’d)

13

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home country

of the Company as follows:

12 PifdBe (&)

ARSI R B A i M) 2 Al T BELAR 2 W] DA A
BRGNS M= T

2007 2006
—RR LA SBEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
WL T T
Profit before income tax RS Nl 17,020 2,323
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% FeBL R 17.5% st 2 BiIH 2,979 407
Effect of different taxation rates FLABI R AR Bl 2R 2 5 2
in other countries (239) (35D
Income not subject to tax LT A UN (576) (309
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes /S A] giBLEEFIER 1) BH 52 432 981
Tax loss for which no deferred 8 A HERR R ZE PT80S P Y BAR
income tax asset was recognised 1,760 1,045
Utilisation of previously il FH ELHi A R 2 B4R
unrecognised tax losses (2,930) (1,591
Recognition of previously Tite w8 5L i A e il 2 BT IR 22
unrecognised temporary differences (211) -
Recognition of previously AL A MERR 2 BiE
unrecognised tax losses (1,000) =
Income tax expense PRES 215 182

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
The profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of
HK$9,475,000 (2006: loss of HK$550,000) which has been dealt with

in the financial statements of the Company.

“FRF LI R

13 JBeOROREAY i A

U TR E A1 7 R L 4 AR ) B S S TR o
K HE 9,475,000 TERYEE B (B EFANE

1% 550,000 JCHIEGIE) o

M AR A A
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oy

B R T R

14 Earnings per Share

(@

®

©

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
HK$16,805,000 (2006: Group’s profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of HK$2,141,000) and the weighted average
number of 224,951,000 (2006: 224,496,000) ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

14 RN

(€))

15 IR AR A

g JRE TR AR 28 R T A A A (O 4 A
B S TR A\ ¥ ) 40 95 ¥ 16,805,000 TG
(ZFFNAE AN 2 58 B B R
fiki 85 ) o R 9 2,141,000 7). BAEINE
BT R 2 IRESF 4% 224,951,000
B (ZFFISAE 0 224,496,000 %) ®f
o

Diluted earnings per share ) FRENEA
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the g S4B TR 22 ) 7 R A A 4 (R 4 7
Group’s profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of e e BRCFRE A v 1) 4 95 M 16,805,000 T8
HK$16,805,000 (2006: Group’s profit attributable to ordinary (BN« AN B 2 5 AR e
shareholders of HK$2,141,000) and the weighted average A6 ¥ A 40 5 s 5 2,141,000 76) M A8
number of 230,974,000 (2006: 225,180,000) ordinary shares after TG VB TE 48 A v sk MR HE R
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 15 2 A JR N RESE-24145230,974,000 I
(T FFEINAE 1 225,180,000/8%) FHE -
Reconciliation © HIk
2007 2006
TRRLAE TEEBNE
Number Number
of shares of shares
BBy ¥ H e B H
Weighted average number of FAERT B A BRI
ordinary shares used in calculating 48 RN HEF- 258
basic earnings per share 224,951,000 224,496,000
Deemed issue of ordinary shares R A T A B A
for no consideration 6,023,000 684,000
Weighted average number of FAVER S IR 2 1Y
ordinary shares used in calculating A 2 IR N RE ST 2 8
diluted earnings per share 230,974,000 225,180,000

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Dividend

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007 of
HK$0.044 (2006: Nil) per share, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$9,913,000, is proposed on 20 March 2008, which is subject to
approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 9 May 2008.
This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in
these consolidated financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December
2007.

»‘/T\ j@%i&% I}ﬁ IILII_.

15 BB

WEEF/NFE=HTH > EEOHERIRE
BEFZZLETH=T—HILFEZR
BRI m I ¥ 0.044 0 (ZFF
JNAE ) S AL HEHE 9,913,000 TG o MLAF
JREE M A\ AR A JUH 847 2 A
R E R - BRI R R TE
BEZFZLE T ZH =T —HILFEZ 4
G IR R B TE R RS, (HR R R
J2 I oy BR 2 ik 2 AR o

2007 2006
g LA L % 3=
HK$’000 UKS 000
wEW T (ki
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.044 S VR A RS g R 4 R
(2006: NiD) per ordinary share W 0.044 T (TN - ) 9,913 =
Investment Properties 16 #¥EYE
The Group
A SR
2007 2006
R LA BN
HK$000 HK$°000
WL T T
At 1 January w—H—H 14,750 17,601
Disposal H& (4,900) (2,050)
Fair value loss on revaluation BENREW L AT EER - (801)
At 31 December W+ _—_H=+—H 9,850 14,750

The investment properties are held under long-term lease and are
situated in the PRC. The investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2007 on the basis of its open market value by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Ltd, an independent firm of qualified property
valuers. Net fair value loss for the year 2006 amounted to HK$801,000

was charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.

“FRF LI R

EVSSLYE JNINN L/ X rs =S LN =
BEmEC R _FELFE+_H=1+—HH
TSI ARG A R BB A T R A R A
NPT E R TR > —FTNFEIE
AR Z N TE R AW 801,000 TG E A
LRI ERNA

M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

16 Investment Properties (cont’d)
At 31 December 2007, the Group had no unprovided contractual

obligation for future repairs and maintenance.

The Group’s interest in investment properties at their net book values

are analysed as follows:

16 $e#YE (80
REBBLETTAST—H o AEEITY
BT SR A A AN (R T A9 540

Bt

ASE FTE B SE R SR HL AR T (AT
W

The Group
AR
2007 2006
ZRFLEE TRLRE
HKS$’000 HK$000
W T T
Outside Hong Kong, held on: AU LISMEE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10 4 50 42 FTHEAY 9,850 14,750

During the year 2007, the Group disposed an investment property
in Guangzhou and a gain of HK$439,000 is credited to the

consolidated profit and loss account

TR AGEE TR M
ZEEWIE > KR 439,000 TTZ ERE
Yl C Rt SRS IRARIRIA o

The Group
AR
2007
—RR L4
HK$’000
i T
Net book value of investment property FlE R EWE
held for sale LETRE(E] 4,900
Add: Gain on disposal of e R G
an investment property i 4 439
Net cash consideration B A E R 5,339

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2007



17 Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

17 Y3 ~ BN KBt Ai

The Group AL M
Leasehold Furniture Plant and
Construction Leasehold improvements and  machinery Motor
in progtess buildings fEHE  equipment L1723 vehicles Total
FRTH ILECES V- S YT B Tl HH
HKS$/000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$/000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT BT T T T i
At 1 January 2006 WEZEANF—H—H
Cost A 11,102 29780 17715 28907 13912 133 102750
Accumulated depreciation ZatrE - (8,052)  (15189)  (27,627)  (13,115) 427)  (64,410)
Net book value R 11,102 21,728 2,526 1,280 797 907 38340
Year ended 31 December 2006 BEZEEAE
TA=ET—HIEFE
Opening net book value SR 5 (] 11,102 21,728 2,526 1,280 797 907 38,340
Additions NE 12321 - 511 718 677 114 14341
Depreciation (note 7) I (k7 - 659 (1,089 (547) (440) 26 (299
Written off/disposals e/ = (413) 27) (16) @ = 458)
Transfer L5 (19,078) 15,582 = 358 3,138 = =
Transfer to lease RS e
prepayments (Note 18) (f5E 18) (4,345) - - - = = (4,345)
Closing net book value AR TR - 36,238 1,926 1,793 4170 756 44,883
At 31 December 2006 NZFEENE
+ZH=Z1+—H
Cost BA - 4487 16987 29764 17446 1448 110482
Accumulated depreciation Zitires - (8599 (506D (797D (13,.276) 692 (65,3599
Net book value TR - 36238 1,926 1,793 4170 756 44,883
Year ended 31 December 2007 BEZEZLE
TAZET—HIEFE
Opening net book value SRR 5 (] - 36,238 1,926 1,793 4,170 756 44,883
Additions WE = 697 174 1,443 403 = 2,717
Depreciation (note 7) i (it 7) - 10 (1,120 (759) (695) (28)  (3770)
Written off/disposals g/t = = ) (18) = = (23)
Closing net book value AR - 36,025 974 2,459 3878 471 43807
At 31 December 2007 e i
TZA=1—H
Cost A - 4533 16512 31164 17,89 1448 112,507
Accumulated depreciation 2t = 9509 (15538) (28705 (13971 977)  (68,700)
Net book value W i L - 36,025 974 2,459 3,878 471 43,807
Note: A depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment of HK$145,000 FERE AW 145,00000 (ZFFNA - M) 29

(2006: Nil) has been charged to cost of sales.

TR R

3~ RS B 2 AT R B B AT

M AR A A
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Ao BB R T R

17 Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d) 17 W% ~ P& R (40)
All property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2007 and 2006 W ZEELFERZEENFEFZH=Z+—H
of the Group are stated at cost. IRAEJE 2RI 3E ~ B S S AR R
18 Lease Prepayments 18 MEEFAF
The Group’s lease prepayments represent interests in leasehold land AR A [ AR B TR AT R A 2 2 L B 3 K
and land use rights under operating lease and their net book values HuEE FRE > IR FE TN N -

are analysed as follows:

The Group
A g
2007 2006
R —BE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
In Hong Kong, held on: TEFWRA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10 F- % 50 F 2 A 44,648 45,611
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EFWLIMER
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10 4% 50 £ Z A 4,238 4,324
48,886 49,935
The Group
A AR
2007 2006
“BBLE  CEEAE
HK$°000 HKS$'000
wE T it
Net book value at 1 January A—H—HZ IR FE 49,935 49,456
Transfer from property, REYZE ~ Wk M (Kt 17)
plant and equipment (Note 17) - 4,345
Amortisation PG (1,049) (1,016)
Disposal e - (2,850)
Net book value at 31 December Rt H=1+—H ZEmEHE 48,886 49,935
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

18 Lease Prepayments (cont’d) 18 MEEF A (&)
At 31 December 2007, a property held by a subsidiary of the Group MRFELE+ZH=A4—H » AEEZM
which was charged to a bank to obtain banking facilities as follows: JE A R I EC A T SRA TR B -
The Group
AR
2007 2006
ZRELE ZERENRE
HKS$°000 HK$'000
Wl T oo
Lease prepayments TSR 41,568 42,452
Leasehold building THEW 8,516 8,759
Carrying value of property charged B THATE SR 2
to a bank to obtain banking facilities Y SERR TH 3 50,084 51,211
19 Disposal of a Subsidiary 19 MEREA
The Group
AL
2006
ZERENFE
HK$'000
T oo
Disposal of a subsidiary WA s A )
Investment property BB 2,050
Leasehold improvements GENE S 8
Aggregate net assets disposed AR
at date of disposal 2,058
Loss on disposal & EE (503)
Net cash consideration Bl REFH 1,555
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary for the year ended 31 December A ZZEZNFZH =+ —H IR E R
2006 represents loss arising from the disposal of a 100% interest in Ji N R RS HR 2 AR A T A e B SE P
an investment property holding company. The investment property W B o ZBCE AR BN -

is located in Guangzhou.

TR AR AW M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

»&F

20

21

A BATS i 2% bt 5

Disposal of a Property 20 R
For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group disposed a property RZFENRE+ZH =+ —HILEE » A%
in Shanghai and a loss of HK$1,031,000 is charged to the consolidated B — AR Bl > LB
profit and loss account. 1,031,000 JTCZ EHEE AL GBS RN o
The Group
AL
2006
TRLRE
HK$'000
T oo
Lease prepayment B AR 2,850
Leasehold building N 415
Leasehold improvements i ¢ 20
Net book value of property held for sale FRE & Y SRR 1 RE 3,285
Less: Loss on disposal W TR (1,031
Net cash consideration Bl AR E 8 2,254
Investment in Subsidiaries 21 WEA N
The Company
ARG
2007 2006
—RB L —EEAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
Wi T T
Investment, at cost BE > A 86,131 86,131
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN 115,449 106,620
201,580 192,751
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and FF e85 2 ) R R A R~ e L R S ] R AR K

&

o

have no fixed terms of repayment.
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21 Investment in Subsidiaries (cont’d)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2007:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

21 WEAH (5)
REBBLETAST—H  AAAER
W R 2 R T -

Group equity

interest held by
Place of A R DL R AW Issued and paid
incorporation/ P 5 B AR 2% up ordinary
operations the share capital
Name of company vk, Company Subsidiaries C¥47 K& Principal activities
AR BRI AAE WEAF HRNERA R
% %
Anagram Company British Virgin Islands - 100 US$1  Investment holding
Limited L J IR L 13%70  HEER
Arnhold & Company, Hong Kong - 100 HK$20,000,000 Trading and
Limited ik W 20,000,000 TG engineering
LA R 7] B0 kI
Arnhold & Company Shanghai - 100 US$200,000 Trading
(Shanghai) Limited* iR 200,000 ESTN =0
R B 5
(L) ABRAF] *
Arnhold (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands/ 100 - US$1,000 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1,000 #i6  REHEK
IR LR
ik
Arnhold China Hong Kong - 100 HK$2 Inactive
Limited i w2 WmE¥E
LA BRA T
Arnhold Design Hong Kong - 100 HK$2 Retailing
Centres Limited ik w2t

LR A PR ]

“FRF LI R

M AR A A
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Ao BB R T R

21 WA (&)

21 Investment in Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Group equity
interest held by

Place of A BB DL A ) Issued and paid
incorporation/ PR e A i 2 up ordinary
operations the share capital
Name of company kML, Company Subsidiaries B¥4f7 %k  Principal activities
kR AR ARH WEAFE BOLBA  BEERE
% %
Arnhold Investments Hong Kong - 100 Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding
Limited Non-voting &l
LR E A BRAF ik deferred
HK$1,000,000
e s i 1 e
45 SRR SE B
#H 1,000,000 7T
Arnhold (Macau) Macau - 100 MOP25,000 Trading of construction
Limited i ¥ 25,000 materials
ik (W) AR HEMEE S
Arnhold Marble Hong Kong - 100 HK$12 Trading and
China Limited Hils w12 70 management
LFN E A A R A services
B oy B8 PRRHS
Arnhold Marble Hong Kong - 100 HK$2 Design and supply
Limited HiE w200 of natural stones
LR EAA PR A AT B ALK IR A A
Arnhold Properties British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Property holding
(B.V.I) Limited Hong Kong 13€70  WERFH
B ae il y
ik
Bain d’Or Building Hong Kong - 100 HK$2 Inactive
Materials Limited Hils w2t Wi
LR RS IR 7]
Bain d’Or Inc. USA - 100 US$2,000 Inactive
eS| 2,000 £t WEESE

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Ao BB R T R

21 Investment in Subsidiaries (cont’d) 21 WEAY (41)

Group equity
interest held by

Place of A BB DL A ) Issued and paid
incorporation/ Pt B A i 2 up ordinary
operations the share capital
Name of company kML, Company Subsidiaries B¥17 %  Principal activities
kR BRI ARH WEAFE WREIRA BB
% %
Bain d’Or Trading Hong Kong - 100 HK$1 Inactive
Limited i w1 oT WEE
s T PR 7]
Diction Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2 Property holding
15 A FR A 7 it B 2T YR
Dongguan Arnhold Dongguan - 100 RMB17,546,951 Natural stones
Marble Limited* B, e ANE¥E 17,546,951 processing
FEE LR MATRAF * RERAHFHINT
Grandful Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2 Property investment
HARA PR 7] i w2t WERA
Palatial Properties British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Property holding
Limited Hong Kong 13270 YR
B R R
ik
Keen Smart Trading Hong Kong - 100 HK$1 Inactive
Limited it B 1T HEEsE
Worldpole Investments Hong Kong - 100 HKS$2 Property investment
Limited ik w2 PR
MEAE B AR 7
o Wholly-owned foreign enterprise, which is incorporated in Mainland * 7 F 2 A S A T P A R B AT: A1 v 2
China as a limited liability company. % .

SETLE EH 2 M P A W A (103
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Ao BB R T R

22 Interest in Associates

22 BB AR

The Group
A SR
2007 2006
“RRUAE TRTINAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EW T T
Share of net liabilities JEAN £ R - (1,763)
Amount due from associates il NI - 6,865
- 5,102
The Group’s interest in the associates all of which are unlisted, was AAEE AT (G BT MR
as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZZ LA A= —HIHEE
Particulars of Country of
Name of Company issued shares held incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss) Interest held
Ak AT SR P H Y A A &R O g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
BT IT BT T T BT T
Kingspan China Limited* 2,000 Ordinary shares of ~ Hong Kong 182 (315) 192 5) 20
I A R HK$100 each itk
2,000 BEAEREH#E 100 JC
-y il 4 iy
182 (315) 192 )
0 Disposed on 11 January 2008. * MEEZNFE—H+—HLE
For the year ended 31 December 2006 BEEENELF - H=+—HILEE
Particulars of Country of
Name of Companies issued shares held incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues  Profit/(loss)  Interest held
A T BT ER AL 2 B A A B (kR [ £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 %
BT IT BT IT ki T
Kingspan China Limited 2,000 Ordinary shares of ~ Hong Kong 490 619 2,567 377 20
FE A R R HK$100 each i
2,000 JR A3 100 T2
A IR
Bostik Holding 4,000 Ordinary shares of ~ Hong Kong 0,435 8,198 3,462 (1,767) 40
Hong Kong Limited HK$1 each ik
4,000 AR 1 02
T Am R A

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

6,925 8,817 0,029 (1,390)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 Interest in Associates (cont’d)

No dividend was received during the year from the associates (20006:
Nil). The amount due from the associates is unsecured, interest free

and has no fixed terms of repayment.

There was unrecognised share of losses of Kingspan China Limited
in the year while the cumulative unrecognised share of losses were

HK$132,000.

On 23 July 2007, Arnhold & Company Limited (“ACL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Deed with Bostik
Australia Pty Ltd (“Bostik”) and Bostik Holding Hong Kong (“Joint
Venture” or Bostik HK”) in relation to the termination of Joint Venture
established by the ACL and Bostik. It was agreed that ACL should
transfer 4,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each in the Joint Venture to
Bostik, Bostik should in return pay ACL a sum of HK$11.4 million,
which includes the consideration for the transfer of shares in the
Joint Venture and the amount owned by the Joint Venture to ACL.
The disposal was completed on 1 August 2007, whereupon Bostik
HK became wholly owned by Bostik and ceased to be an associate
of the Group. A disposal gain of HK$2,667,000 is credited to the
consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December

2007.

Ao BB R T R

22 BB AR (&)

AR AR AR Z BB (ZFEAN
4 ) o WA R GRS SRR - B

IF6] 1L B A BR A RRAAT IR R TR R
T 22 A5 AL R e s 4R 5 AW I 132,000
fl: °

WZEELFELAZ+=H > ZRIHRAF
(AnmIEEHEAR) ([%H]]) BBostik
Australia Pty Ltd.([Bostikl) /& Bostik
Holding Hong Kong Limited ([ &%/ |
B¢ [Bostik HK ) &% 11 22| B Bostik i 7.
ZE AR RISLRYE o PRI > L[5 Bostik
BN A AR R A AR > B
4,000 et BEmEREW 1 T2 Wk - T
Bostik HIJ 7] % F| 3245 #5 # 11,400,000 76 » &
HESEEGEE G B A T’y 2 B R G EA T
JERTT 2R 2 I - EFREOR _FF L
HE)\H—HSERL > #I3 % 2,667,000 02 H
Bl R —FELE+ZH =+ —H L4
ARG Bt RNFEHR o

The Group
3]
2007
ZRRUAE
HK$’000
Wi
Disposal of an associate WEBE A
Share of net liabilities upon disposal A LB I A M A R A AR (2,864)
Amount due from associate NI 11,396
Net book value of associate held for sale W o8 FRRAE S 2 AR T 8,532
Net cash consideration received BN A 2 B e BT
from disposal of an associate 11,199
Gain on disposal k=g 2,667

M AR A A
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»‘/T\ ji%i&%% I}ﬁ IILII_

23 Available-for-sale Financial Assets

23 kA 2 W

The Group
A S

2007 2006

it 2 23 ZREINF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Wl Tt R I

At 1 January w—H—H 2,318 1,954
Revaluation surplus transfer B AEREE R (6 32) 841 554

to reserve (Note 32)

Less: provision for impairment loss W A R R - (190)
At 31 December Bt=ZA=+—H 3,159 2,318

Available-for-sale financial assets represent the unlisted equity

securities and unlisted club debenture of the Group, and are stated

AL 2 BB R E AR =%
F+_HA=1— HE@%E?UE&Z#LFH%%

at fair value at year ended 31 December 2007. FBOE M E B g o
24 Inventories 24
The Group

AR
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT W
Merchandise P 11,309 16,731
Consumable inventories HREAE 4,399 3,648
Raw materials R Rk 5,074 2,839
Work in progress TE 3 3,893 2,151
Finished goods 52 BT 839 429
25,514 25,798

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$304,478,000 (2006: HK$235,768,000). The
Group reversed HK$94,000 (2006: HK$89,000) of a previous write-
down in December 2007. The amount reversed has been included

in the operating expenses in the consolidated profit and loss account.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

FE B A e ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ)\ﬁﬁ’%ﬁVKE@ W
AW 304,478,000 76 (% ”T\E i)
#1:235,768,0007T) ° 2&%@ NFTLAE
+ A B A 94,0000 (B FNAE
#us89,00000) HIFF B IRIEHEM - HERIY
SHO A SRS R NS P -
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Ao BB R T R

25 Construction Contracts 25 HELRL
The Group
A
2007 2006
R LA Y 2 3w
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Contract costs incurred plus attributable — EEEE A &9 BLAS I EAS Vi F
profits less foreseeable losses to date CCINERN s - 81,026
Less: progress billings to date W B - (82,908)
- (1,882)
Included in current assets/(liabilities): nEEE (AfE) G
Due from customers on construction W & 5 2 A H) 3K IH
contracts (included in construction (CokrgeeTara)
contracts) - 18
Due to customers on construction JEAT &P 2 A #)3KIH
contracts (included in trade and (ELIGAEE ) B H A REAT 30)
other payables) - (1,900)
- (1,882)

At 31 December 2007, there was no retention held by customers for
contract work included in trade and other receivables of the Group

(2006: HK$4,535,000).
At 31 December 2007, there were no advances received from

customers for contract work included in other payables of the Group

as disclosed in note 29 (2006: Nil).

“FRF LI R

ATRELES A Z—H > A EN K
MEFIFAZGHIEMRES (ZFEN
4 UK 4,535,000 TC) o

Wf ek 20 P 5% 2 AL —FF LA
H =4 — B AR AT O e & it e T
i & P 2 AR (ST TN
1) -

M AR A A
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26 Trade and Other Receivables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

26 ¥ 5 R ILAbHEBGK

The Group The Company
AR Ay
2007 2006 2007 2006
“RRLE ZRBINGE RRLAR TRBINE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
T WHT I BT T
Trade receivables JE W & 7 ik 103,779 61,770 - -
Retention receivables PR B 42 ek 4,626 9,519 - -
Receivables from related parties [N BE#E A L AREK
(note 37) (Ff5E 37) 97 611 - =
Total trade and retention W B 5 Wk I
receivables JRE S P BE 4 A %R 108,502 71,900 - —
Less: provision for impairment 8 : MEMCIR IS (E T
of receivables (1,368) (3,039 - -
Net trade and retention JE W B 5 Wk I
receivables JRES PR BE 42 VR 4R 107,134 68,861 - =
Prepayments and other FEATH R B A R WA R
receivables 8,043 2,437 245 108
115,177 71,298 245 108
Less: non-current portion W FE BT - (467) - -
115,177 70,831 245 108

All non-current receivables are due within two years from the balance

sheet date. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

JiAr R i B B k4 L B AR R B 4
EASAT o 8 5 R FLAbRENSGHONR 1h (B BELE

PE(EAA ©
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26 Trade and Other Receivables (cont’d)

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90
days. Debtors with balances that are long overdue are normally
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit

is granted.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade

receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers.

The aging analysis of trade and retention receivables, net of

provisions, is as follows:

Ao BB R T R

26 ®5 RIS ()

ALEF — R4 T 30 2 90 REYATH -
IEIANRERER A - AT BRI RHE AZE AT T (B
FORNHAEER - Tl A TE 68 -

AL REES > BIE S BICKIE

BRI A o

BRI 12 B 5 B S AL 17 B3 4 (A I 1% 40
Hran R

The Group
A

2007 2006

RELE  EEAR

HK$°000 HK$'000

T T

Current A HA 60,105 35,368
One to three months overdue i —==H 35,713 20,362
Three to twelve months overdue = MH =+ H 8,597 3,123
Overdue more than twelve months AR A H 2,719 10,008
Net trade and retention receivables JRENSC R 5 FE i B AL B 4 1 AR 107,134 68,8601

The trade and retention receivables included in the above aging are
considered not impaired as these relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. All the
impaired overdue trade and retention receivables have been provided
for. As at 31 December 2007, trade and retention receivables of
HK$1,368,000 (2006: HK$3,039,000) were impaired and provided

for.

“FRF LI R

H A BRE A B ) AR B NAC R BE < 1Y
L NI PN IR SK > Ak R LS
14 JEE LA 8 5 Wk e JREMAC R B 46 317 AR A5 % Wk
1B > T E I8 (B8 ME R ) B 3 B
B CAEEM - R _FRLFETH=1—
B MU E 5 IR sk S B AR B & 40
1,368,00000 (ZFE/NAE + £ %53,039,000
J6) S B K AR o

M AR A A
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Ao BB R T R

26 Trade and Other Receivables (cont’d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables are as follows:

26 B 5 B ICfbREBGR (&)
255 MBS S B B 4 (A S 0 S B

T

The Group
AL
2007 2006
ZRELE DRI
HKS$°000 HK$'000
W T oo
At 1 January w—H—H 3,039 3,730
Provision for impairment of receivables — FEWC IR (EL B4 484 1,186
Receivables written off during the year 4[R5 £ A RE S 1] 1) ME Wk iy
as uncollectible (1,628) (1,521)
Write back of provision JRE AT i (L 438 A4 438 [
for impairment of receivables (527) (356)
At 31 December A+ H=+—H 1,368 3,039

As at 31 December 2006 and 2007, other than the trade and retention

receivables as disclosed above, all other classes within trade and

other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and retention receivables

REFEARELFFLFT A=1—
o BRLA_E 3588 ) MR B2 o) MRk B B W O B
A - TEMENCE oy AR B S R IE A9 B i
A HAWEN A S s B E

AR T 4 B S B2 ) R B B WS B < P AR T

are denominated in the following currencies: HLA N5 & 5y B
The Group
A

2007 2006
R LA Y 2 3w
HK$’000 HKS$'000
W BT
HKD i 80,762 55,626
RMB AR 18,649 6,977
MOP T 2,824 7,394
USD FE4 6,267 1,460
Other currencies HAth & - 443
108,502 71,900

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Ao BB R T R

27 Derivative Financial Instruments 27 fiAEEWmITH
The Group
AR
2007 2006
ZRELE ZERENRE
HKS$°000 HK$000
W T oo
Forward foreign exchange contracts = HHANE G 4
— held for trading — DI E
— Assets —HE 2,597 1,063
~ Liabilities —ffR (58) (368)
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. Lo AT A T RSB B B s AT -
The net unrealised fair value gain/(loss) on forward exchange N_ERENER ZERELFET A =+—
contracts as at 31 December 2006 and 2007 which are not qualified H o AFFE S RN G 2 2 R BB
as hedges has been accounted for in the consolidated profit and TEEFEF (BH) ERtGEAHEERS
loss account. TilERE o
Details of the outstanding forward foreign contracts held by the ACEFLFETHA=1T—H > AEERE
Group as at 31 December 2007 are disclosed in note 36(c). These FA) ) A 30) 0 A e 4 EAE R 36(0
contracts expire through 2008. P o T%E G AR ZFE ) AENER o

TR LA R ZOREE R AR AR (111
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Ao BB R T R

28 Cash and cash equivalents

28 BERBESEY

The Group The Company
A S b AR
2007 2006 2007 2006
TRRBAE ZRERINAE TRRLAE TERTINAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
WL T IT W0 T
Bank deposits with original JEA R H 55 =108 1
maturity of three months or less DA Z SRATAE X 54,935 37,668 - -
Cash at bank and in hand SRATAE R I 4 19,589 15,034 180 125
74,524 52,702 180 125

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is ranging

from 0.63% to 5.2% (2006: ranging from 1.62% to 5.19%). These

deposits have an average maturity of 54 days (2006: 52 days).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are

denominated in the following currencies:

SEIASRA TAF A B SR 2R 1 0.63 % 5.2 )8
AEE (ZEENE © 1.62HES 19HALE) »
BRI 2I M H B 54 K (CFBEAN

4 52K) e

ARG B Bl B Bl S EY IR (E LA T 51

R -

The Group
A

2007 2006
R RN
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T VT IT
HKD i 21,562 8,930
RMB NG 23,286 19,561
EUR Bt 10,763 1,044
USD F4 17,223 22,098
Other currencies HAh & 1,690 1,069
74,524 52,702

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29 Trade and Other Payables

Ao BB R T R

29 B 5 B AbMENT K

The Group The Company
AR AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
it 2 23 TRTINE TRRBAE e < A2
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK'000
WL T W0 T
Trade and bills payables JREAT B 5 MRk K
JEEAT BE 62,857 35,600 - -
Accruals and other payables JREAS 2 R R At A K 30,671 26,588 265 1,119
Advances received AT
from customers 11,294 4,206 - -
104,822 66,394 265 1,119

All of the above trade and other payables are expected to be settled

within one year.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their

fair values.

The aging analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows:

VAL AT B 5 B AR AR TEI — 4 K

EAT -

§2 7y B JE At B A B T (L BELEL - B (AR

F o

JREARY B2 ) MR e B AN SR AR AU SR AT B

The Group
A

2007 2006
g LA Y 2 3w
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T BT
Current TR 4T A 36,607 25,794
One to three months overdue mi— % =@ A 22,052 7,519
Overdue more than three months 70 1A At =R 4,198 2,287
Total trade and bills payables JREAS & 5 Bk M AT SR B A 62,857 35,600

TR R

M AR A A
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Ao BB R T R

29 Trade and Other Payables (cont’d) 29 B 5 B ICfbREST R (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables are AL 5 ML EAT SRR RE LA T 51 B
denominated in the following currencies: YA
The Group
ARG
2007 2006
TRRLe TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
W T oo
HKD i 4,063 4,625
RMB NG 4,343 2,029
EUR [ 28,412 16,811
USD F 21,264 10,832
Other currencies HoAth £ 4,775 1,303
62,857 35,600
30 Provisions 30 i
Employee
Long service leave
payments entitlements Total
% H
T Bs 4 7 4B My
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
W T T W T
At 1 January 2007 N oEELHFE—H—H 633 1,050 1,683
Additional provisions BE AN (275) 1,454 1,179
Less: Amounts utilised W BB EKE - (1,094) (1,094
Charged to consolidated B4R & BRI
profit and loss account 275 360 85
Less: Amounts settled W O ST EOA - D OD
Net effect on provisions B 275 269 ©
At 31 December 2007 RoRRLETA=1—H 358 1,319 1,677
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Ao BB R T R

31 Share Capital 31 JBeA
Issued and Ordinary Share
Ordinary shares e 0.10 1 Authorised fully paid shares premium Total
of HK$0.10 each 2B e CEfROsR Wl BB M
(Number of shares) HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
s €| BT BT T
At 1 January 2006 and RZZERE-H—H K
31 December 2006 ZEERETZAZ1—H 800,000,000 224,496,000 22450 92,389 114,839
Employees share option scheme  {f B B tHERH 5
— issuance of ordinary shares — BRI R 0 = 800,000 80 320 400
At 31 December 2007 REZZUEFZA=T—H 800,000,000 225,296,000 22,530 92,709 115,239
A Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved and adopted AN F A —FE A B A —H ZOR
by the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company A R b v R BR A — T R R ST
on 11 July 2002 under which the Board may, at its discretion, invite ([FZRT#E]) - PR > ER G WERTEE
Eligible Persons to take up options to subscribe for shares of the AN IR RE DA SR A F JBe gy
Company.
Details of options granted to directors and employees of the Company MRS RZ T 0] 45 s ) 26 25 SR B A L 1 v
under the Scheme were as follows: ZREEWT
Outstanding
Outstanding options as at
options as at Exercised/ 31 December
1 January lapsed/ 2007
2007 cancelled “RBLE
“RRLE Granted during the FF=H  Subscription
—H—H during the year =+—H price
Date of PARAT year JRMERATEE WARLT per share
options granted 4% B B9 Z IR A TAE R B2 il s,k gl Z 0 IR A5 I
HK$
W
18 September 2003 ~ —EZE=MFSLA+AH 3,700,000 - (800,000) 2,900,000 0.500
19 November 2004 ~ —FFEWE+—H+ILH 3,700,000 - - 3,700,000 0.602
21 November 2005  —ZEZHAFE+—H _+—H 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 0.700
11,900,000 - (800,000) 11,100,000

TR LA R ZOREE AR AR (115
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Ao BB R T R

31 Share Capital (cont’d) 31 A (&)
Outstanding
Outstanding options as at
options as at Exercised/ 31 December
1 January lapsed/ 2006
2006 cancelled TRETGNAE
ZRBINGE Granted during the +=H  Subscription
—H—H during the year =t—H price
i A Tl year JAERNTTE i ARAT per share
Date of options granted 5%t IS 2 B e S NE ] (3 ¥&% 2 B B R A
HK$
it
18 September 2003 —FEE=4FSLH+/\H 3,700,000 = — 3,700,000 0.500
19 November 2004 —FFM4E+—H+ILH 3,700,000 - - 3,700,000 0.602
21 November 2005 —EXHFE+—H _-+—H 4,500,000 - — 4,500,000 0.700
11,900,000 - — 11,900,000
Based on the binomial option pricing model, the fair value of the e —EA R ER A R =
options granted on 18 September 2003, 19 November 2004 and 21 FESHATANH - ZEFNE+—H T ILHB
November 2005 are HK$0.248, HK$0.141 and HK$0.180 respectively. K oFEFZRAFEF—H =+ — R R
However, since the valuation relies on subjective assumptions such INAEAE S T 77 s 170,248 7T ~ #s#0.14170
as the estimated volatility of the share price, the binomial option Ko 0.180 7T o A RZ R BORE 2 (A A 5
pricing model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of BN L T ABURER > 51 a0 FEA IR AE e i -
the fair value of the options. The weighted average assumptions 1M T RO e (A 0 R 4L T 5 ) i
used are as follows: JRHELPEAE -
Options granted on
21 November 19 November 18 September
2005 2004 2003
i I A 52 ¢y H 00
ZRRHAE SREPNAE CRREAE
+—A=+—H +—HA1+JuH JUA+AH
Risk free interest rate (in %) 4 JE B A1 2R (%) 4.4 2.8 3.8
Expected life (in years) TR (46) 5.0 6.0 6.9
Volatility (in %) R (%) 51.2 49.2 77.5
Expected dividend per share (cents) TEMEEREALE (il 4.4 4.4 4.4
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31 Share Capital (cont’d)

At the dates before the options were granted, being 17 September
2003, 18 November 2004 and 20 November 2005, the market value
per share was HK$0.50, HK$0.60 and HK$0.70 respectively.

The Options granted on 18 September 2003 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 September 2005
and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1
September 2006 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 19 November 2004 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November 2006
and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1
November 2007 and 30 August 2010.

The Options granted on 21 November 2005 can be exercised in two
instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November 2007
and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time between 1
November 2008 and 30 August 2010.

Employee share option benefits represent fair value at grant date of
share options issued under the Scheme that amortised to the
consolidated profit and loss account during the year disregarding

whether the options have been vested/exercised or not.

m$ j@%i&%QMTiE

31 A (%0)

TERER R T —H o R =L+
tH - ZFFWEF—A AN RZFER
FEr—H T H - R BB 7l 5 s s
0.50 7 ~ #5 % 0.60 JC KW 0.70 TG ©

i~??QERH+AH&$Z%%%T“
WA > BEREAE 2 50% Al fh =& FLAF
hH~H§_;~§$AH:+H¢%ﬁﬁ
i > R N2 50% Al —FEANEILH—H
&R —FAE )N H =+ H IR E AT

A BT A — H+hH&ﬁz%&%T
Sy AT BEIRAE . 500 AT
$+~H~H§~?~?EAH*+H¢@
MIATHE > R R 2 50% A —EEEFE+—
H—HEZF—FF/N\H=1H I HfT
fif o

R OBERFE+—H A B
R AT > BEHE 2 509% A —
LHEF—H—-HE=F-FHENH=THI
WA - B8 F 2 50% n i —FZF/\4F+
—H—HZEZ=F—FF/)\H=1THIL M7
fifi o

18 5 BT MR 2 oy AR S B w4

H%ﬁé"%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ/\fﬁﬁqﬁ/\ SR TR R A S
uﬁﬂuZF%ﬂx%Eﬁ&ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂiE

M AR A A
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Ao BB R T R

32 RESERVES 32 il

Available- Employee
for-sale share-based

Share  investment compensation Retained  Contributed
premium reserve reserve earnings surplus Total
Wikl i ELIBe Y
The Group AR TRt D S0 i R HA TEBR Sk A
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

T T BT T T T

At 1 January 2006 WZEEANFE—A—H 92,389 (334) 1,100 79,327 808 173,290
Profit attributable to shareholders JRE SR A s = = = 2,141 = 2,141
Employee share-based compensation i 5 e = A1
benefits Zfaf - = 649 - - 649
Surplus on revaluation HHEA - 554 - - = 554
Reversal of surplus on revaluation of FA TR AT kil B B
impaired available-for-sale B 2 B
financial assets to consolidated profit HARBEHE
and loss account - (65) = = = (65)
At 31 December 2006 RZFRRE
+-H=+—H 92,389 155 1,749 81,468 808 176,569
Profit attributable to shareholders B 5 i - - - 16,805 - 16,805
Employee share-based compensation 1 B e = B A -1
benefits ZFaA - = 386 - - 386
Employee share option scheme: 1 B st - = = - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares s suliidid 320 - - = = 320
Surplus on revaluation HHAA = 841 = = = 841
At 31 December 2007 REZRLE
gay; =y 92,709 996 2,135 98,273 808 194,921
Representing: B
2007 Proposed final dividend “FT LR
REIE 9,913
Others Hity 88,360
Retained earnings REZZ LA
as at 31 December 2007 T+ A=+
ZPRBHA 98,273
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A BATS i 2% bt 5

under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$86,500,000 (2006: HK$77,026,000).

e

5 E HE 2 — JUN—4E 0 5] % AT {43 W g
F33E 497 #5°86,500,000 TG
H#s W 77,026,000 JC) ©

2R AR

(ZFFAF

)\\/]'Q
32 RESERVES (cont'd) 32 fflii (%0
Share Retained Contributed
premium earnings surplus Total
The Company P | JBe Ay i A5 P82 B W
HK$000 'HK$'000 MM 000 HK000
it (ki T (ki T T
At 1 January 2006 R ZFENE—A—H 92,389 2,509 75,067 169,965
Loss for the year SRR = (550) = (550)
At 31 December 2006 R ZEEINE
+Z=A=+—H 92,389 1,959 75,067 169,415
Profit for the year AEFERLF = 9,475 = 9,475
Employee share option scheme: 1§ B M HERH# -
Issuance of ordinary shares [k e=gilidivdli 320 = = 320
At 31 December 2007 )/ e 2 S S
+=H=1+—H 92,709 11,433 75,067 179,210
Representing: BB
2007 Proposed final dividend ZERBLFERZ
AR 9,913
Others HAth 1,520
Retained earnings /g 22 o i B
as at 31 December 2007 +T=H=1+—H
Z A 11,433
The distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2007, RFRLEF A=+ —H ALK

AR
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Ao BB R T R

32

33

RESERVES (cont’d)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess of the
nominal value of the shares of Arnhold (B.V.1.) Limited and the
nominal value of the deferred shares of Arnhold Investments Limited
acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in

December 1993.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the undistributed
excess of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefore pursuant
to the Group’s reorganisation in December 1993. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is

distributable.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax were calculated in full on temporary difterences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate ranging
from 16.5% to 17.5% (2006: 17.5%).

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

32

33

il (%)

AAE [ 2 R AR 2 T8 A Arhold (B.V.1)
Limited Z 43T (HEL % R B E A BRA R 2
AR HE 9 TG (R A A R ARSE — UL =41
T AAREEEAT ST 2 B (TEMA3cH -
ey EEZ B

AR 2 AR B BRI TR WA % S5 P 2 R 2
HEFEHBEALFARE - UNL=F1T"H
LEEE BT 2y (DASCHiaZ 55 M8 A W
ZEEFE) H{EZ AR IREER o R %
E—NN—ERRNE > BB TR o

Y 4 P 4 B

AR PITASR TE B ) B8 T At e T PR 24 -
FBiF16.5% £ 17.5% (“FEFNE 1 17.5%)
VB2 BB -
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Ao BB R T R

33 Deferred Income Tax (cont’d) 33 EHEPGB (4H)
The movement of the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during FENELETABEE, (A &8
the year is as follows: o
Accelerated
depreciation
Tax loss allowance Total
Tk B 45
B HBLB B
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T Lt AT
At 1 January 2006 and RZFENRE—A—H K
at 31 December 2006 CEBENFEF H=1+—H - (425) (425)

Deferred income tax credited RAE T BLAE AR B A R
to the consolidated profit and INFEHR

loss account 1,000 211 1,211
At 31 December 2007 REZFFLETZHA=Z4—H 1,000 (214) 786
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EA R WA TRE T A B B T B
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current BB A RS - FLRIE FASBiw K A — Wi
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the WA > RIRT RO AE 15 B0 ¥ A B A B AR A
same fiscal authority. The amounts shown in the consolidated balance 8 o BB T ¢

sheet include the following:

The Group
SR
2007 2006
“RBUAE ZERTINAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T W
Deferred income tax assets TE 12 18 H A s
to be recovered within 12 months PSR E B 1,000 =
Deferred income tax liabilities AR 12 11 A A AE R
to be settled after more than 12 months  EAERIE £ & (214) (425)
Deferred income tax assets/ IEAERL G
(liabilities) — net (BfR) W 786 (425)
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Ao BB R T R

33 Deferred Income Tax (cont’d)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realization of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of HK$4,881,000 (2006: HK$8,960,000)
in respect of losses amount HK$27,890,000 (2006: HK$51,200,000)

that can be carried forward against future taxable income.

The potential deferred income tax assets which have not been

accounted for in the consolidated financial statements amount to:

33 EHEIHB (B

R A P A T T R ) 2 A O A (R
AT R 2 B R 2 AR A T REI MR A A FERRBL
FEE BLAHS 2 o ASKE BN AL ] 45 A
SR A ERRB i £ 19 s 4E 40 75 14,881,000 0T
(CBENE - AW 8960,000 TC) FERRIE
FEFITRB EE AV I 27,890,000 76 (ZEE
FNEE T ATHEE 51,200,000 T8) ©

WA A S & B R A AR AE PR 5B
BSEE

The Group
S

2007 2006
—eg L — BRI
HKS$’000 HK$'000
T W T T
Accelerated depreciation allowance TR B - 229
Other timing differences HApth R 2= 4,881 8,731
4,881 8,960

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

34 T (3%

34 Financial Instruments by Category

Assets
at fair value
through
profit and loss Available-
Loans and AT for-sale
receivables EAE w43k 4 Total
Group A S ek B HE ek iR I Y Vs % A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T HEd T
Assets as per consolidated s A H A f iR
balance sheet [{5h= g7
31 December 2007 —EERLAE
=S ==
Available-for-sale financial assets  HJ {448 BAH & 7
(Note 23) (Bt 23) - - 3,159 3,159
Derivative financial instruments ~ fiTA= &l TH
(Note 27) (BT 27) - 2,597 - 2,597
Trade and retention receivables &%) MRk X fR B8 4=
(Note 26) FENER (BfFE 26) 108,405 - - 108,405
Receivables from B A kK
related parties (Note 26) (FftzE 26) 97 — — 97
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R B8
(Note 28) (BffsE: 28) 74,524 - - 74,524
Total Fok] 183,026 2,597 3,159 188,782
Assets as per consolidated R & G AR
balance sheet )
31 December 2006 AN
+ZH=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets ] {48 BA &
(Note 23) (5% 23) = = 2,318 2,318
Derivative financial instruments ~ fiTA &/l TH
(Note 27) (5% 27) = 1,063 = 1,063
Trade and retention receivables &5l M R B8 4
(Note 26) JElE (BERE 26) 71,289 - - 71,289
Receivables from related parties  BH#E A - EY K
(Note 26) (Bf5E 26) 611 - — 611
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB 18
(Note 28) (Bff3E: 28) 52,702 - - 52,702
Total Fik ] 124,602 1,063 2,318 127,983

TR R

M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

34 Financial Instruments by Category (cont’d) 34 SWTH (HEM) (4)
Assets
at fair value
through
profit and loss Available-
Loans and WA T for-sale
receivables BRI W gk A Total
Group ARG £k B Mok LR I B Y g B
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
WHTT W T WHTT W T

Liabilities as per consolidated H¥55: & % FE AR

balance sheet iy £ 45

31 December 2007 —RR LA
+=H=+—H

Trade and bill payables B 5 Wk S AT S5

(Note 29) (Bt 29) 62,857 - - 62,857
Derivative financial instruments ~ fiTA &/l TH

(Note 27) (Bt 27) - 58 - 58
Total Fik ] 62,857 58 - 62,915

Liabilities as per consolidated WRIRL & EE AR

balance sheet A

31 December 2006 ZEREINE
+=H=1+—H

Trade and bill payables B0 MR I A S48

(Note 29) (BffiE 29) 35,600 - - 35,600
Derivative financial instruments ~ fiiA= &l TE

(Note 27) (Bt 27) - 368 - 368
Total R 35,600 368 - 35,968
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

34 @R (BN (&)

34 Financial Instruments by Category (cont’d)

Assets
at fair value
through
profit and loss Available-
Loans and WA T for-sale
receivables i wf gk Total
Company VA | ek B HE ek iR I Y Vs % A
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T o AT 0 BT WHET I
Assets as per balance sheet AL A £ A e o
31 December 2007 ZRBLAE
T=H=1+H
Amount due from subsidiaries NGV &S

(Note 21) (Bf5E 21) 115,449 - - 115,449
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl EY)

(Note 28) (Ff5E 28) 180 - - 180
Total HazH 115,629 - - 115,629
Assets as per balance sheet R E A RN E
31 December 2006 ZEREINE

+—-H=+—H
Amount due from subsidiaries NGV

(Note 21) (Pff5E 21) 106,620 = - 106,620
Cash and cash equivalents Bl B B8

(Note 28) (Ff5E 28) 125 - = 125
Total R 106,745 - = 106,745

TR R

M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

35 Contingent Liabilities

(a) At 31 December 2007, there were contingent liabilities in respect

35 AR
@ REEFFLEF-A=ZT—H > 84

of the following: BENT -
The Group The Company
ARG AR

2007 2006 2007 2006

SRR ZERENE SRR e =

HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK 000

T T T W kT T
Guarantees for credit facilities granted
by a bank on behalf of subsidiaries

RERBE A 7 S4TSR B R - = 279,000 279,000

(b) Certain subsidiaries have given undertakings to banks that they
will perform certain contractual non-financial obligations to
third parties. In return, the banks have provided performance
bonds and letters of guarantee to third parties on behalf of
these subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2007, the amount of
guarantees outstanding was HK$3,038,000 (2006:
HK$3,144,000).

36 Commitments
(a) Commitments under operating lease
The Group leases various retail outlets and offices under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have varying

terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(b)  #5 T WJE 2 AR ] SRAT ARG 6 1) 55 =
TBATE TR MBHE 2 58T -
2SR SR T TRk G AR SR A BN A | 1)
9= RALE A s K AE RS - R
FELFEF A=+ —H > BHREHE
R &3 038,000 TG (EENAE ¢
#rHkWE 3,144,000 TT) ©

36 SRR
(@ HERERE
A S AR T 1 2 A 55 7L
LB EHAPAE o HEH T2 4
0 IR R A RS A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 Commitments (cont’d)

(a) Commitments under operating lease (cont’d)

At 31 December 2007, the Group had future aggregate minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

Ao BB R T R

36 AR (H)
(@ BEALURE (50
REZRLEF A= —H o Ak
AR A BT AL 9 2 A A

follows: AR SRR
The Group
AR
2007 2006
ZRELE CRTRAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
W T oo
Land and buildings b F AT
— Not later than one year — RN 2,702 2,558
— Later than one year and — JREE AR T
not later than five years 3,973 795
6,675 3,353

At 31 December 2007, the Group had future aggregate minimum

lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating

CCBBLEF AT —H A%
AR AR B RLA) 2 1 2 M

leases as follows: KRR T
The Group
AR
2007 2006
“RB LA TREAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Wl o0 i
Land and buildings b F A
— Not later than one year — RN 521 700
— Later than one year and — JREE AR I T
not later than five years - 495
521 1,195

The Company leases land and buildings under various
agreements which terminate between 2008 and 2009. The

agreements do not include an extension option.

“FRF LI R

AL R ARYEAS (7] 1 e AR B ik
Fo M ZF T NE R ZFF M
#Al > W2 RO A SE SRR -

M A R AR (127
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

36 Commitments (cont’d)

36 BAMRIE (&)

(b) Capital commitments b) EARKE
The Group
ARG
2007 2006
TRRLe ZEREINAE
HKS$’000 HK$000
W e B
Contracted but not provided SRR R AT
— property, plant and ot /E B Y&
equipment - 182
— investment in an associate —BE A FIRE - 5,484
- 5,666
(c) Forward exchange contracts © EHMESH

At 31 December 2007, the Group had outstanding forward
exchange contracts to buy EUR5,713,000 (2006: EUR4,305,000)

at various rates totaling approximately HK$63,323,000 (2006:
HK$43,206,000); to buy JPY109,971,000 (2006: JPY140,563,000)

at various rates totaling approximately HK$7,415,000 (2006:
HK$9,584,000); to buy GBP224,000 (2006: GBP97,000) at various
rates totaling approximately HK$3,497,000 (2006:
HK$1,439,000); to buy US$6,593,000 (2006: US$8,105,000) at

various rates totaling approximately HK$51,143,000 (2006:

HK$62,607,000).

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ao EmELEFTH=+—H > A%
B 45 A AT AN ] RE 2R Hi A 5,713,000 Bk
JG (BN 4,305,000 BOT) 1
) oA B 0 55 1 A1 REE A A 40 B8 A0 7 i
63,323,000 TG (" BENLE : AUl
43,206,000 JG) 5 $EA[A] FEZREEA
109,971,000 HIGL (ZFEINAE :
140,563,000 HIJt) B 1 A B = 1 4h
FEA 4 RBRA) U BE 7,415,000 6 (Z=F
TN K 9,584,000 78) 5 A
[F] FERBEA 224,000 JogE (—FEN
4 1 97,000 JEBE) B M A B A1
TE & #ARREA U N 3,497,000 8 (ZF
TN KT 1,439,000 70) 5 HEAS
] FE R B A 6,593,000 0 (—FEEN
4E 1 8,105,000 KTT) 1 AR F HA%E HA
HIEF A AR BEATHE H751,143,00008 (—
TN L K 62,607,000 TG) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

37 BARBALZERY
BA 97 3 A S P LA B A A 27

37 Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions, which were carried out in the

normal course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

P2 TS ¢

2007 2006
—RR LA —EEALE
HK$°000 HK$'000
WL T T
Sales of goods and services T i L5 3
Administration fee received from TREBRE S MO 2 AT B
the associates (note a) (@) 1,261 1,117
Gross rental income received from T Mg > WS 2 AR AUl
the associate (note b) (FFEED)) 107 181
Sales of goods to related party I [ N - 6 P
(note ¢) (FfE) 9,526 1,200
Purchases of goods and services ik B W i SRL A5
Professional fee paid AT TR A LB A
to related party (note ¢) (MFEEC) 179 142
Key management compensation RN B4
Salaries and other emoluments 4 S HAt I 45 5,221 4,717
Discretionary bonus M EAE AL 282 639
Year end bonus ELAEED 427 198
Retirement Schemes contributions RIRE R 411 359
Employee share-based & B e =2 B R il
compensation benefits ZAm A 351 582
Year-ended balance arising S B R AR KL B B
from sales of goods
Receivable from related party JE Wiz R 2\ R R 97 611
Year-ended balance arising BB A v R Z AR A b
from associates
Receivable from the associates JE ST 45N AT HE K - 6,865

M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao BB R T R

37

38

Related Party Transactions (cont’d)
(a) A subsidiary of the Group provided management services to
the associates for which it charged an administration fee at a

fixed monthly amount.

(b) During the year, the associates paid rental expenses of
HK$107,000 (2006: HK$181,000) to the subsidiaries of the
Group.

(o) In addition to transactions with related companies as disclosed
above, professional fees of HK$179,000 (2006: HK$142,000)
were paid to a firm in which a non-executive director is a
partner. Besides, sales of consumer goods of HK$9,526,000
(2006: HK$1,200,000) were made to a listed group of companies
in which an independent non-executive director is also a

director of the listed group.

It is the intention of the directors of the Company that the Group
will continue its business relationships with related parties under
similar bases as adopted in previous years. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the transactions with the related companies
were carried out in the ordinary course of business on normal

commercial terms.

Events after Balance Sheet Date

On 11 January 2008, the Group completed a share disposal
transaction in the capital of Kingspan China Limited (“KCL”), an
associate company in which the Group had a 20% equity interest,
whereby the Group transferred its entire interest represented by
2,000 ordinary shares in KCL to Kingspan Holdings (Insulation)
Limited (formerly as Kootherm Holdings Limited). Upon completion

of the disposal, KCL is no longer an associate of the Group.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED

37 BAREALZRY (4)

38

()  ASE B 2 B} 2 w42 A BRSO
WA w > SRR A WORE E 2 AT B
J:: 8

(b) AN - B w AT 4 2 A i
#107,000 TC (ZFENAE - LU
181,000 JG) T— [ AS4E [ 2 Fff g 2>
7 o

(© B Bl BRH BN R Z 55 » A5
B — R AN — LI ERLHE
BN Z N RS B R A
179,000 J& (FEENF A%
142,0007C) 5 HARLEE R — LA A
SE B B RS AL A 1 9,526,000 TG
(ZFFINAF - #H% 1,200,000 78) >
RN — BB RATEF I b
TR #ESH -

AR A SRR AN B DAEE i R T 2 AR
AL AR AT B\ LA SE B BAR o
AN A SRR My B AICA BRPEL Y R T 2 58
Zy 9 F R SRS AR 4k — v S e
7 o

W HBIH

ZEENE—A+—H > AEETRLE
W B A PR A (TR PR ) (ARG
AT 200 B HER SR RO IR AN R Ay - #E
L > AR ) R EA i o B ) A R
(B 1 3. B 34 R 432,000/ ) T Kingspan
(A8 %
Kootherm Holdings Limited) o 8 52 i,
& > [ P R A AR B AT

Holdings (Insulation) Limited
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Other Financial Information

HAb A8 &R

(I) Five-year Financial Summary D) HAEMERE
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (31)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
TEAE —RENLE SRERAE gzztw B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'00( HK$’000
THIE T T %fc Tt
Results E3
Turnover EX 373,443 321,156 292,438 297,550 387,904
Operating profit/(loss)  ##&F/ (E518) 3,082 485 1,948 4,286 18,267
Finance costs WEEHR 75) (54) (23) (196) (146)
Share of profit/(loss) of ~ JEfHHE /A F%F],/
associates (st8) (263) (1,065 - (1,767) (1,101)
Profit/(loss) before W A5 i s
income tax (58 2,744 (634) 1,925 2,323 17,020
Taxation FiJE (305) (226) (301) (182) (215)
Profit/(loss) attributable &S EAL %5 A/
to shareholders (t8) 2,439 (860) 1,624 2,141 16,805
Dividend i35 9,878 9,878 = = 9,913
Assets and liabilities %% R A&
Total assets HETRE 322,321 278,993 268,216 267,889 324,514
Total liabilities e fE (119,552) (86,501) (72,476) (68,870) (107,063)
Shareholders’ funds R &4 202,769 192,492 195,740 199,019 217,451

Total assets as at 31 December 2003 and 2004 have been restated as

a result of the prior year adjustment in respect of the adoption of

Hong Kong Accounting Standards 17 “Leases” and Interpretation 21

TERNEHE R A I 2 (i aatiE
QI 5517 88 THUE ) ek 21 [esi—
REE AT E EE R m] | IR AR

BAR > N FTULEf —FS
+# EI E‘Jmuﬁ% E{’Eﬁﬂ °©

F=HFE+"A=

“Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciated Assets”

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

— AR AEW M A R A E (131
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Other Financial Information

HAB A8 &R

(ID) Schedule of Principal Properties aD FTEYE -BE
Investment properties BeEPIE
Term of
Address Use lease
ik & RLEBR
Units 01 and 02, 26/F, and car parking Oftfice 47 years
spaces nos. 30 and 31 on Basement 1, premise expiring
Super Ocean Finance Centre Building, in 2043
2067, Yan An Xi Road,
Honggiao Economic & Technology
Development Zone, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
e A BRI R b 9 SR A8 R i B % [ WA= E_FN=AF
SEZ PG 2067 BEAREE B0 26 B 01 J 02 E X A+t
Mg 12 30 K 31 SRIAELLL
Leasehold land and buildings LN WL E S
Attributable
Gross Term of interest of
Address Use floor area lease the Group
bk i #e i B AL A B A i A
(a) Unit B on 6/F, Portion of Flat roof on Office 1,678 75 years 100%
1/F, and car parking spaces nos. 58, 59, premises square expiring
60, 61 and 62 on 3/F, Victoria Centre, meters in 2054
15 Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong
AU e L E 15 9% W= 1,678 B EZHIE
HEZ ML 6 HE B B - 1 MR- B K RRVES mETHE
345859 60 61 & 62 BRIAHLN
(b) 5/F, Block A and car parking space Godown 2,548 58 years 100%
No. L11 on 1/F, Kerry BCI Godown Centre, square expiring
3 Kin Chuen Street, Kwai Chung, meters in 2047
New Territories, Hong Kong
U A A 3 5% V-1 2,548 B _ZNLA
AR E A AL A S MR RAES b A
1 4% 111 SRIAELAL
(¢) Yaoshan Village, Xiegang Town, Factory 30,000 50 years 100%
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, square expiring
The People’s Republic of China meters in 2055
R YNRE L) e W5 30,000 FE_EBRALE
SRSE T i ff S 2E 1L A RRES A4
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